
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

TOWN OF WELAKA 

ZONING BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

June 15, 2023 at 6:00 PM  

Honorable Willie Washington, Jr. Town Council Room 

400 4th Ave., Welaka, FL 32193   

(This meeting will be broadcasted, for view only, on the Town of Welaka Facebook page) 

1. CALL TO ORDER by Chairman David Jeltes 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL by Town Clerk, Meghan Allmon  

- Chairman David Jeltes 

- Lenore Toole 

- Les Thomas  

- Marianne Milledge 

- Town Attorney Patrick Kennedy 

4. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:  

 

 1.   May 18, 2023, Meeting Minutes  

 

5. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. None. 

 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS: 

 

1. Land Development Code: Article 2 – Permitted Uses (Binder Tab # 2) 

 

 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

8. ADJOURN 



  

Page 1 of 2 

 

TOWN OF WELAKA 

ZONING BOARD MEETING 

May 18, 2023 @ 6:00 P.M. 

 Honorable Willie Washington, Jr. Council Room 

400 4th Ave., Welaka FL 32193 

 

MINUTES 

 

 

1. CALLED TO ORDER by Chairman David Jeltes at 6:00 PM 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALLED by Town Clerk, Meghan Allmon: Chairman David Jeltes - present; Lenore 

Toole - present; Les Thomas - absent; Marianne Milledge – present; and Town Attorney Patrick 

Kennedy - absent. Three Members present. Three Members are present, we have a quorum.  

4. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:  

1. April 27, 2023, Zoning Board Meeting Minutes. 

Edits to make in the 4/27/23 Minutes: 

Jeltes - Approval of minutes, Section 4. - Change word to “Regardless.” 

Jeltes - Old Business, Section 5. - Change wording to say that he said we “should” allow metal 

walls. 

Toole - Old Business, Section 5, the line above the previous correction, her name should be 

spelled as “Toole.” 

 

Motion Made by Toole to accept the 4/27/23 Minutes with corrections, Seconded by Milledge. 

Passed 3/0. 

5. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Continued Review of ORD 2023-02 – Welaka Architectural Standards Draft –  

Jeltes – Adopted by Council on May 9th but there is one item of concern. Page 7, Building 

Orientation – a house is supposed to face the right of way. The other structures would also need 

to face the same way. Finch mentioned in the Council Meeting for her home, this but it was 

impossible with her garage.  
Toole – in the Sportsmans harbor, a lot of the mobile homes are placed sideways, and the front 

door is sideways sometimes.  
Jeltes – if the lot is big enough and the house is not too big, Jeltes would prefer the home facing 

the street. 

Toole – you’re limiting the house and less access into it on a narrow lot. 

Jeltes – if the lot is large enough, he’d like both the house and garage facing toward the road. 

Toole – if the lot is too barrow, less than 10,000 sq. ft., they need to be exempt. 

Jeltes – should there be wording in this new ORD to state the footage and obligation? They could 

always apply for a Variance. 

Toole – if the words are in the new ORD, then Variance would not have to be done, saving time 

and money. 

Jeltes – if the garage is out in front of the home, then the door is facing the proper side. He’d like 

to see those kinds of exceptions in the ORD. 

Milledge – agrees the wording needs to be in the new ORD. The second reading/adoption is set 

for the next Council Meeting on June 13th. 



  

Page 2 of 2 

  

Jeltes – it cannot be adopted at the next Council Meeting since these edits need to be added in 

first and then presented to the Council. 

Toole – Councilwoman Kim Dugger lives in the harbor also and she’s not sure if her house 

placed sideways. 

Toole – a few lots in the Town were 75’ and other sizes, non-conforming, but homes were 

allowed to be placed on some of those lots in the past. 

Jeltes – what we all learned with Ms. Olson’s set-backs is that we can address this better in the 

future. 

Toole – would like to make a motion for the Town Attorney to revisit Section 9, Building 

Orientation, in the new ORD 2023-04, to make non-conforming lots have a road facing main 

entrance and an accessory building can be placed where the doors are not facing the road. 

Jeltes – What was the edit for on the ORD that went from ORD 2023-02 to 2023-04? Is this 

correct?  

Town Clerk – yes, that is the next ORD number in line to use, so the edit is correct. 

Toole – Pam Olson called Toole personally to discuss the setbacks on her lot. Olson said that 

Kennedy did not want to do this and then he approved it. Her new home is 16’6” from the road 

and 9’ on either side and Toole said it should have been 7.5’. Olson said Kennedy re-vamped it 

and she could place it 16.6’ back and 9’ on either side. Kennedy has been thinking about it and 

Toole and Olson are glad he’s thinking about it now. Olson called Toole and said that Kennedy 

just changed his mind.  

Milledge – said Olson’s first home is 15’ back and Kennedy waned it 10’ back, now he allowed 

it so that the 2 homes are even along the road. 

Toole – said Kennedy revised it with Olson and emailed her the approval. Olson was so happy! 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT: None. 

7. NEW BUSINESS: None. 

8. ADJOURNED: 6:16 PM 



The Law Offices of Patrick J Kennedy, PA 
P.O. Box 298 

Welaka, Florida 32192 
patrick@pjklawfirm.com 

(386)524-4401 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Welaka Zoning Board 
 
From: Patrick Kennedy 
 
Cc: Meghan Allmon, Town Clerk 
 
Date: May 18, 2023 
 
RE:  Land Development Code – Article 2, Sections 1-3 
 Zoning Districts and Allowed Uses 
 
Please find enclosed with this memorandum a first draft of Article 2, Sections 1-3 of the 
proposed Land Development Code. It covers the zoning districts, allowed usese and prohibited 
uses. It is a rough draft so plenty of opportunities for refining.  Also included with this 
memorandum are the key ordinances where much of the regulatory scheme comes from (at least 
the standard black text provisions). 
 
I first attempted to translate the various ordinances that currently make up the zoning district 
regulatory scheme in place and then add in what I determined to be both needed and preferred 
additions/changes. My additions and deletions are shown in redlined text. The changes generally 
speak for themselves and I will provide clarification during the public hearing review. However, 
there are some elements I want to explain in this memorandum should help you during your 
review of the document prior to our next meeting. 
 
Section 1 – General Provisions.  
 
Most of this section is derived from the current code provisions. There are a couple proposed 
additions that we need to discuss. 
 

2-107 
 
This section establishes a zoning interpretation procedure that does not currently exist in 
Welaka’s ordinances. It is typical and generally borrowed from the Putnam County’s 
procedure. It is not complicated, but I believe it is necessary to have a formalized 
procedure for this type of determination. It allows for either the Planning Board or a 
zoning official to be the Council’s designee. 

 
2-109 
 

mailto:patrick@pjklawfirm.com


This section attempts to make it clear that the development standards do not begin and 
end in the Article. There are other design and use considerations in other sections of the 
Land Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan that come into play. 

 
Section 2 – Use Categories 
 
This would be an entirely new approach under Welaka’s land development code. It is not used 
by every jurisdiction, but it is found in many land development codes, including Putnam 
County’s. It is not necessary, but I feel it helps clean up interpretation issues and helps categorize 
uses in appropriate groupings that we all can understand. There will always be some uses we do 
not think of or that fall in a gray area, but this approach helps limit those situations. 
 
Section 3 – Zoning Districts 
 
The changes incorporated into this section of the land development code generally try to 
incorporate the Use Category approach to the zoning and clean up some missing elements related 
to dimensional and intensity controls. I also show the IL, PF-1, PF-2, CN and PUD zoning 
districts in red text because there is not a lot familiarity with the current regulations and as 
written, these sections were severely lacking in meaningful content. 
 
If you have any questions, comments, or concerns you would like to discuss in advance of our 
meeting, do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
 



ARTICLE 2. PERMITTED USES 
  
 
SECTION 1. – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
2-101 Purpose. 
This Article II of the Town of Welaka Land Development Code establishes zoning districts; 
establishes the relationship between the Town's future land use map and zoning map; and 
provides a list of use categories, specific uses and specific structures that may be allowed within 
each zoning district. It also provides  for accessory and temporary structures and uses. The 
zoning districts and list of allowed uses and structures are intended to provide for coordinated 
and orderly growth by implementing the future land use map and related comprehensive plan 
goals, objectives, and policies regarding land use, including the intensity and density of the 
allowed uses. Where there is a clear conflict between the Town’s comprehensive plan and this 
land development code, the provisions of the comprehensive plan shall govern.  
  
2-102  Zoning districts established; zoning maps adopted. 
 
 
The Town is divided into zoning districts listed below on a zoning map kept and maintained by 
the Town. The zoning districts listed below are delineated on the Town's zoning district map 
dated ________________. The Town's zoning district map is declared a part of this code, and 
may be amended from time to time as provided for under Article ___, of this code.  
 
Zoning District    Abbreviation  
Agriculture     AG 
Single Family Residential-1   SR-1  
Single Family Residential-1A   SR-1A  
Multi-Family Residential-1  MR-1 
Residential-Mobile Home Park  RMH  
Recreational Vehicle Resort  RVR 
Tourist Commercial   TC 
Commercial, Neighborhood   C-1  
Commercial, General    C-2  
Industrial - Light    IL  
Public Buildings & GroundsFacilities- 1 PF-1  
Public Buildings & GroundsFacilities- 2 PF-2  
Conservation     CN  
Planned Unit Development   PUD  
  
2-103.  Interpretation of zoning district boundaries. 
 
The following rules apply in interpreting the zoning maps:  
(a) Boundaries indicated as approximately following the centerline of a street, highway or alley 

shall be construed to follow such centerline.  



(b) Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines shall be construed as 
following such lot lines.  

(c) Boundaries indicated as approximately following the Town limits shall be construed as 
following such Town limits.   

(d) Boundaries indicated as following shorelines shall be construed to follow such shorelines. In 
the event of a change in shorelines, the boundaries shall be construed as moving with the 
change except where such moving would change the zoning status of a lot or parcel and in 
such case, the boundary shall be interpreted in such a manner as to avoid changing the zoning 
status of any parcel or lot.  

(e) Boundaries indicated as parallel to the extension of features indicated in paragraphs (a) 
through (d) above shall be construed as indicated. Distances not specifically indicated on the 
zoning maps shall be determined by the scale of the map.  

(f) Where a district boundary divides a parcel (i.e., split zoning), and there is no legal 
description specifically associated with establishment of the district boundary, the boundary 
shall be interpreted to divide the parcel as indicated and pursuant to the scale established on 
the map. Evidence of a prior property boundary line in place at the time the zoning was 
originally established that lies within 25 feet of the indicated district boundary may be used 
to adjust the zoning district boundary. 

  
2-104  Reference to zoning district names. 
 
(a) Where the term "residentially zoned" is used, or the context indicates a provision applies 

to all residentially zoned property, the term refers to the SR, MR and RMH zoning 
districts.  

(b) Where the term "commercially zoned" is used, or the context indicates a provision 
applies to all commercially zoned property, the term refers to the C zoning districts.  

(c) When the term "industrially zoned" districts" is used, or the context indicates a provision 
applies to all industrially zoned property, the term refers to the IL zoning district.  

(d) Where the term "agriculturally zoned" is used, or the context indicates a provision applies 
to all agriculturally zoned property, the term refers to the A zoning district.  

  
2-105.  Enclosed building requirement. 
Unless otherwise specifically provided, all uses shall be housed in a fully enclosed building.  
  
2-106.  Relationship of zoning districts to future land use categories in the comprehensive plan. 
Table II.A below illustrates which zoning districts are consistent with and implement the future 
land use categories described in the Town of Welaka Comprehensive Plan and depicted on the 
future land use map in the future land use element of the Town's comprehensive plan. The table 
is for illustrative purposes only. Each specific land use in the Town, including the over-all 
development scheme for each use, should be analyzed for consistency with the entire 
comprehensive plan, regardless of the zoning district. Compliance with the requirements of the 
zoning district is only one step in that consistency analysis. The location, timing, density, 
intensity, and design requirements of any proposed development in each zoning district may be 
further defined in other provisions of this code. 
  

 



TABLE II.A: ZONING DISTRICTS CONSISTENT WITH THE FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORIES INDENTIFIED 
IN THE TOWN OF WELAKA’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 AG SR
1 

SR
1A 

M
R1 

RMH RV
R 

TC C-1 C-2 IL PF-
1 

PF-
2 

CN PUD 

Residential- Low Density X X X           X 
Residential- Medium 
Density 

 X X X X         X 

Residential – High Density              X 
Recreational Vehicle 
(Seasonal) 

     X X X X     X 

Commercial       X X X     X 
Industrial          X    X 
Agriculture X             X 
Recreation and Open Space           X X X X 
Public Buildings & 
Grounds 

          X   X 

Other Public Facilities            X  X 
Conservation X            X X 

 
2-107 Use Determinations.  
 
(a) The use provisions in the various zoning districts are exclusive, and any use category or 

specified land use specifically listed under one district but not in another shall be prohibited 
in the district where it is not listed.  
 

(b)  A specific use that does not clearly fall within a use category under Section 2 of this Article 
and  is not listed as a permitted use or a use allowed by conditional use permit in any zoning 
district under this Section 3 of this Article, or elsewhere in this code, shall be deemed 
prohibited unless the Town Council or its designee makes a determination in writing under 
the criteria listed in paragraph (c) below that the proposed use is intended to be allowed in a 
given zoning district.  

 
(c) Uses that are not specifically listed as an example under a certain use category or that are not 

expressly listed as a permitted or conditional within a given zoning district may be allowed 
when determined in writing by the Town Council, or its designee, to meet all three of the 
following conditions: 
(1) Appropriate by reasonable implication and intent of the or the zoning district; and 
(2) Similar to other uses explicitly allowable by right or special use permit; and 
(3) Not specifically prohibited within the district. 

 
(d) Any determination made by a designee of the Town Council under this provision may be 

appealed to the Town Council under the administrative appeal procedures outlined in _____ 
of this Code. Determinations made by the Town Council are deemed final. 

 
2-108  Vested Lots. Lots in vested subdivisions or existing lots of record may be assigned a 
zoning district in which the use of lots, the with the lot dimensions, and lot area generally that  
most closely  comply with the standards of the assigned zoning district, provided the proposed 
use is allowed by the applicable future land use category but notwithstanding the density 
requirements of the future land use category.  



 
2-109. Entire Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan Apply.  

(a) All manner of development, land uses, or structures are governed by the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan and where there is conflict between this Code and the 
Comprehensive Plan, the Comprehensive Plan shall govern.  

(b) All manner of development, use, or structure in a given zoning district, whether by right 
or by conditional use permit, is subject to all of the design and development review 
standards of this Code in addition to the zoning and supplementary use standards 
established under Articles 2and 3 of this Code, unless expressly excepted elsewhere in 
this Code. 

 
SECTION 2. USE CATEGORIES 
  
2-201.  Generally. Because it is impossible to list all potential uses that may be consistent with 
the intent of the future land use designation and zoning district, this section establishes use 
categories that will be allowed in each zoning district. A use category defines the types of uses 
that fit within a given category and then lists examples of the uses that fit the definition.  The 
listed examples are not intended to be exhaustive but shall be illustrative of the type of uses 
allowed under the use category. Where a proposed use could be said to fall within more than one 
category, the Town shall determine in which category the use most closely fits based on the 
description of the use category and the examples of uses in the category. If a use category is not 
listed under a given zoning district as a permitted or conditional use, then the uses that fall within 
that use category shall be presumed to be prohibited.   
  
2-202.  Residential—Single family. A use that provides dwellings or structures intended for a 
single-family household as defined by this code, and may, depending on the zoning district, 
include any one of the dwelling units listed as examples below.  
 

(a) Conventional, site built single-family  
(b) Modular home  
(c) Mobile home, unless expressly prohibited in the zoning district  

  
2-203.  Residential—Multi-family. A use that provides dwellings or structures intended for two 
or more households as defined by this code, and may, depending on the particular zoning district, 
include any one of the dwelling units identified as examples below.  

(a) Multi-family may include, but not be limited to, duplex, triplex, quadplex, garden 
apartments, villas and townhouses, mid-rise and high-rise apartment buildings, and 
garage/accessory apartments.  

(b) Any ownership arrangement is allowed, such as condominium or cooperative, unless 
specifically prohibited in a zoning district.  

  
2-204.  Retail sales—General.  Uses where the primary activity is the sale of goods to the 
public. This use category and may include the following examples:  
 

(a) Antique shop  
(b) Art gallery  



(c) Auto parts store  
(d) Bait and tackle shop  
(e) Convenience store  
(f) Florist  
(g) Fruit and Vegetable market  
(h) Grocery store  
(i) Hardware store  
(j) Hobby supplies  
(k) Jewelry store  
(l) Office supplies - Retail  
(m) Pet shop – Completely enclosed 
(n) Souvenir shop  
(o) Toy store  

 
This use category shall not include the vehicle sales, services or repairs; nor shall it include the 
sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises. 
 
2-205.  Retail sales—Food. Uses where the primary activity is the preparation of food to be 
served to the public for onsite consumption, for take-out by the public, or for delivery to the 
public, and may include the following examples:  

(a) Restaurant  
(b) Delicatessen  
(c) Ice cream parlor  
(d) Candy store  
(e) Bakery  

  
2-206.  Services. Uses where the primary activity is the provision of services to the public and 
may include the following examples:   

(a) Advertising 
(b) Banking  
(c) Clinics  
(d) Copy centers 
(e) Dance/music studios and facilities 
(f) Employment agency  
(g) Funeral home  
(h) Fitness centers  
(i) Salons and barbershops  
(j) Laundry, retail  
(k) Photography studio  
(l) Printing and copying services.  
(m) Repair of appliances, shoes, furniture, clothing and other non-automotive consumer 

goods; but shall not include small engine repair.  
(n) Religious and spiritual   
(o) Tattoo parlor  
(p) Veterinary facilities: small animal with operations wholly indoors 

 



2-207.  Office. Uses where the primary activity is the provision of office space for professional, 
administrative, or clerical activities. It does not include retail sales of merchandise related to 
office use (i.e. pharmaceutical sales or frames for glasses). Examples include: 
 

(a) Physician (but not a clinic)  
(b) Attorney  
(c) Accountant  
(d) Chiropractor  
(e) Opticians  
(f) Physicians 
(g) Architect/engineer  
(h) Graphic artist  
(i) Insurance agent  
(j) Real estate agent  
(k) Model home  

 
2-208.  Educational. Uses where the primary activity is the provision of teaching and classroom 
facilities and may include the examples listed below.  
 

(a) Colleges  
(b) Technical and vocational schools  
(c) Business schools  

  
2-209.  Assembly. Uses where the primary activity is a facility where individuals collect to 
participate, or observe programs or services, or assemble for social, religious or fraternal 
purposes through the provision of meeting places or similar facilities for private organizations. It 
does not include casinos, nightclubs, bottle clubs, bars, or other similar for profit uses, whether 
or not associated with a social, religious or fraternal organization. It does not include boarding 
houses or other types of overnight stay facilities such as RV sites, that may be associated with the 
allowed uses. Examples include: 
 

(a) Fraternal organizations  
(b) Masonic orders 
(c) Churches  

  
2-210.  Commercial recreation and entertainment—Outdoor. Uses where the primary activity 
is the provision of recreation or entertainment in an outdoor setting and may include the 
examples listed below, but shall not include Recreational Vehicle uses or c. 
 

(a) Miniature golf  
(b) Go-kart  
(c) Drive-in Theater  
(d) Amphitheater  
(e) Skate parks  
(f) Paintball  
(g) Golf driving range  



(h) Archery range  
(i) Waterpark  
(j) Marina  

  
2-211.  Commercial recreation and entertainment—Indoor.  Uses where the primary activity 
is the provision of recreation or entertainment in an indoor setting and may include the examples 
listed below.  
 

(a) Bowling alley  
(b) Amusement arcade  
(c) Theater  
(d) Auditorium  
(e) Indoor skating rinks  

  
2-212. Lodging. Uses where the primary activity is the provision of short-term lodging in a 
structure, and may include the following examples: 
 

(a) Hotel  
(b) Motel  
(c) Bed and breakfast  

 
It does not include overnight recreational parks, campgrounds or farm stays; all of which are 
addressed elsewhere in this Code.  
  
2-213. Cultural. Uses where the primary activity is providing a personal service in the form of 
fine arts, historical or culture displays, exhibits, and similar activities that are not places of 
assembly such as theaters or auditoriums. Examples include:  
 

(a) Libraries  
(b) Galleries  
(c) Museums  

  
2-214. Governmental. Uses where the primary activity is the provision of governmental 
administrative services to the public, including the following the examples:  
 

(a) Courthouse  
(b) Police station  
(c) Town hall  
(d) Federal, State or County administration building  

  
2-215. Light industry. Uses where the primary activity includes industrial, manufacturing, 
processing, warehouse, distribution, and assembly uses on scale that is not objectionable to 
residential land uses regarding smoke, odor, fumes, noise, toxic wastes and heavy vehicle or 
equipment traffic. These uses are limited to the Industrial – Light  (IL) zoning district and 
examples of the allowed uses are provided in section 2-311 of this Code. An industrial, 
manufacturing, processing, warehouse, distribution, or assembly use not specifically identified as 



a permitted use under IL, may be categorized as light industrial use allowed by conditional use 
permit if the Town is assured that each of the following criteria are met:  

(a) The use will not be a danger to surrounding uses or activities; and  
(b) The use will not create odors, fumes, dust, or other emissions that will cross the 

property lines of the site; and  
(c) Involves only light volumes of tractor trailers and other heavy vehicle traffic to and 

from the use; and   
(d) The total size of the facility does not exceed 10,000 square feet. 

  
2-216. Heavy Industry. Uses where the primary activity includes industrial, manufacturing, 
processing, warehouse, outdoor storage, bulk storage, distribution, waste transfer and processing 
facilities, and product assembly that creates smoke, odor, fumes, noise, toxic wastes, or volumes 
of heavy vehicle traffic that exceed that light industrial use standards. Heavy Industry uses are 
not permitted in the IL zoning district. 
 
2-217. Agriculture - General. Agricultural uses are those related to the production, keeping, or 
maintenance, whether for sale or personal use, of plants and animals for food, forage, fiber, or 
ornamental purposes. Agricultural uses are characterized as predominantly outdoor activities, 
with structures covering a very small portion of the land; and may include agritourism activities, 
farm stays, aquaculture, and roadside produce stands for sale of agricultural products grown on 
the same premises. Trip generation is low, the number of employees per acre is very small; the 
raising of crops, livestock and poultry is performed in a low density open setting.  
  
2-218. Agriculture - Intensive. Agricultural uses that result in large concentrations of livestock 
or related farm animals or uses requiring a waste disposal permit from the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection. Examples of such uses include:  
 

(a) Feedlots  
(b) High volume dairies, hog farms, and enclosed poultry farms 
(c) Sawmills 
(d) Airstrip for crop dusting 
(e) Borrow pits. 

  
2-219. Recreation - Resource-based. Recreational uses that primarily rely on natural resources 
as the attraction, including public and private passive uses such as parks or beaches.  
  
2-220. Recreation - Activity-based. Recreational uses that primarily rely on facilities for sports 
and other active recreational activities as the attraction; examples of which include ballparks, 
pools, sport courts, playgrounds, golf courses, boat ramps, and boat docks/boat moorings.  
 
2-221. Overnight Recreational Park. A use that involves the parking and occupying of a 
recreational vehicle-type unit primarily designed as temporary living quarters for recreational 
purposes, camping, or travel use, which either has its own motive power or is mounted on or 
drawn by another vehicle; and includes the travel trailer, camping trailer, truck camper, motor 
home, private motor coach, van conversion, park trailer, and fifth-wheel trailer, as those terms 



are defined by section 320.01(b)1-8, Florida Statutes (2022). It does not include the parking or 
storage of unoccupied recreational vehicle-type units. 
  
2-222. Essential public services. Uses that primarily involve small-scale public facilities and 
services that provide services which are, by necessity, spread throughout the community. This 
category does not include structures or uses for commercial activities such as sales of related 
merchandise or collection of bills. Examples include the following:  
 

(a) Water treatment plants (with a capacity less than 500,000 gallons per day)  
(b) Wastewater treatment plants (with a capacity of less than 500,000 gallons per day)  
(c) Natural gas pumping stations  
(d) Telephone equipment installations  
(e) Electrical substations  
(f) Microwave relay stations or other towers (not exceeding 25 feet in height)  

  
2-223. Emergency services. Uses that involve government activities or government-sponsored 
activities that are located to allow for adequate response to the public in case of emergency. 
Examples include: 
 

(a) Town fire department units including volunteer fire departments  
(b) Law enforcement substations  
(c) EMS rescue units  
(d) Town emergency operations facilities  

 
SECTION 3. USES ALLOWED WITHIN ZONING DISTRICTS 
  
2-301.  Generally. 

(a) This section establishes the use categories allowed in each zoning district, either by right 
or by special use permit. Certain uses have unique characteristics that require the use to 
be specifically listed separate from any use category.  

(b) The base-line dimensional requirements such as setbacks, minimum lot sizes, lot widths, 
maximum lot coverage, maximum building heights, minimum road frontages, etc. are 
outlined under each zoning district; however, there are various additional design 
requirements in Article ___ of this code that shall apply, including not limited 
requirements for stormwater management, landscaping, buffering, screening, fencing, 
parking and loading, access management, etc.  

(c) Article 3 of this Code establishes supplemental use regulations that may further define 
conditions that are particular to certain uses allowed in each zoning district.  

(d) Any development proposed to establish an allowed use in a given zoning district, whether 
by right or by special use permit, shall subject to development review as provided in 
Article ___ this Code.  

(e) The use provisions in the various zoning districts are exclusive, and any use category or 
specified land use not listed as a permitted use or a use allowed by special use permit in 
this code shall be prohibited, except as provided under paragraph (f) below.  



(f) Uses not specifically listed as allowable by right or special use permit within a zoning 
district may be allowable when determined by an officer appointed and authorized by the 
Town Council to make such interpretation to be: 

 
(1) Appropriate by reasonable implication and intent of the district;  
(2) Substantially like other uses explicitly allowed by right or special use permit; and  
(3) Not specifically prohibited within the district.  

 
Any determination by the authorized designee under this provision may be appealed to 
the Planning and Zoning Board in the manner provided of appeal of administrative 
decisions under this code.   

 
2-302  Single Family Residential-1 (SR-1).  SR-1 is a single family dwelling district located in 
areas  as shown on the Official Zoning Map for the Town of Welaka, to which the following 
regulations shall apply: 
 
2-302.1. Uses Permitted.  
 
Residential—Single family, including mobile homes subject to proper skirting around the entire 
dwelling and proper utility connections. 
 
2-302.2. Conditional Uses Permitted. When after review of an application the Planning and 
Zoning Commission finds as a fact that the proposed use is consistent with the General 
Development Plan for the Town of Welaka, the following uses may be permitted:   
 

(a) Farming not involved with livestock.Assembly 
(b) PlaygroundsEducation 
(c) Golf CoursesRecreation – Resource Based 
(d) Family Disaster SheltersRecreation – Activity Based 
(e) Recreation AreasEssential Public Services 
(f) Public Utility StructuresEmergency Services 
(g) Churches 
(h) Public and Private schools 
(i) Libraries 
(j) Hospitals 
(k) Sanatoriums 
(l) Institutions of public interest type 
(m) Community Disaster Shelters 
(n) Home Occupations 
(o) Nursing or convalescent homes. 

 
It shall be demonstrated that the property for the proposed conditional use has sufficient 
buildable land to support the use, inclusive of any design requirements for parking, stormwater, 
buffering, screening, etc. Additionally, any proposed development that seeks to incorporate two 
or more of the conditional uses listed above in a distinct residential community must seek 



approval of the proposed development pursuant to the Planned Unit Development (PUD) process 
outlined in section ____ of this Code. 
 
2-302.3. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, intensity and height 
requirements shall be observed in SR-1: 
 

(a) Minimum required lot area: 10,0007,000 square feet 
(b) Minimum required lot width: 100 70 feet 
(c) Minimum required front yard: 25 feet 
(d) Minimum required rear yard: 20 feet 
(e) Minimum required side yard: 7.5 feet 
(f) Minimum required from waterfront or wetlands: 25 feet 
(g) Minimum required living area: 700 square feet 
(h) Maximum lot coverage: 40 percent 
(i) Maximum structure height: 35 feet 

 
2-302.4. Off-Street Parking.  Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided in accordance 
with parking design standards established under section ___ of this Land Development Code. 
 
2-303  Single Family Residential-1A (SR-1A). SR-1A is a single-family dwelling district 
located in the areas shown on the official Zoning Map of the Town of Welaka, to which the 
following regulations shall apply. 
 
2-303.1. Uses Permitted.  
 
Residential—Single family. except mobile homes as defined by section 320.01(2)(a), Florida 
Statutes, are expressly prohibited.  There shall be no other uses permitted by right or conditional 
use permit except as mandated by state law. 
 
2-303.2. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density, intensity and height 
requirements shall be observed in SR-1A: 
 

(a) Minimum required lot area: 10,000 square feet 
(b) Minimum required lot width: 100 75 feet 
(c) Minimum required front yard: 25 feet 
(d) Minimum required rear yard: 20 feet 
(e) Minimum required side yard: 10 ft or 10% of the lot width, whichever is greater 
(f) Minimum required from waterfront or wetlands: 25 feet 
(g) Minimum living area: 1,300 square feet 
(h) Maximum lot coverage: 35 percent 
(i) Maximum structure height: 35 feet 

 
2-303.3.  Off-Street Parking.  Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided in accordance 
with parking design standards established under section ___ of this Land Development Code. 
 



2-304 Multi-Family Residential-1 (MR-1). MR-1 is a residential dwelling district located in 
areas shown on the official Zoning Map of the Town of Welaka, to which the following 
regulations apply. 
 
2-304.1. Uses Permitted in MR-1 zoning.  
 

(a) Residential—Single family, except mobile homes as defined by section 320.01(2)(a), 
Florida Statutes, are expressly prohibited.   

(b) Residential—Multi-family. 
 
2-304.2. Conditional Uses that may be permitted in MR-1 zoning includes the conditional . 
Conditional uses allowed by SR-1 zoning, subject to the same requirement that any development 
that seeks to establish two or more the uses that may allowed by conditional use permit must 
seek approval of the proposed development pursuant to the Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
process outlined in section ____ of this Code. 

(a) Cemeteries 
 
2-304.3. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density, intensity and height 
requirements shall be observed in the MR-1 zoning district and are organized based on the use.   
 

(a) For Residential—Single Family, the dimensional and intensity controls of SR-1 zoning 
shall apply. 
 

(b) For two-family dwellings (e.g., a duplex) the following dimensional and intensity 
controls shall be observed: 
(1) Minimum required lot area: 10,000 square feet 
(2) Minimum required lot width: 100 feet 
(3) Minimum required front yard: 25 feet 
(4) Minimum required rear yard: 20 feet 
(5) Minimum required side yard: 7.5 ft or 10% of the lot width, whichever is greater 
(6) Minimum required from waterfront or wetlands: 25 feet 
(7) Minimum living area: 700 square feet 
(8) Maximum lot coverage: 35 percent 
(9) Maximum structure heights: 35 feet 

 
(c) For all other Residential—Multifamily, the following dimensional and intensity controls 

shall apply: 
(1) Minimum required lot area: 20,000 square feet for the first two dwelling units and 

5,000 square feet for each additional dwelling unit that is added. 
(2) Minimum required lot width: 200 feet 
(3) Minimum required front yard: 30 feet 
(4) Minimum required rear yard: 20 feet for one and two story structures, plus an 

additional five (5) feet for each story added after two stories. 
(5) Minimum required side yard: 10 ft for a single-story structure, 20 ft for a two-story 

structure, and 5 feet for each story added above two stories. 
(6) Minimum required from waterfront or wetlands: 25 feet 



(7) Minimum living area:  
i. Efficiency apartment: 400 square feet 

ii. One bedroom apartment: 700 square feet 
iii. For each bedroom in excess of one bedroom add a minimum of 100 square 

feet to the minimum living area. 
(8) Maximum lot coverage: 40 percent 
(9) Maximum structure heights: 35 feet 
 

2-304.4.  Off-Street Parking.  Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided in accordance 
with parking design standards established under section ___ of this Land Development Code. 
 
2-305 Agriculture (AG) – The AG district is intended to apply to areas that are sparsely 
developed away from urban activities. It is intended that to allow only limited, low density 
residential and  agriculture-related commercial and industrial development be allowed as follows 
uses.    
 
2-305.1. Uses Permitted in AG zoning.  
 

(a) Agriculture, horticulture and forestry uses, including the keeping and raising of fram 
animals and poultry. Agriculture – General. 

(b) Single-family residences. Residential—Single family, including mobile homes as defined 
by section 320.01(2)(a), Florida Statutes. 

(c) Roadside stands where the major portion of products offered for sale is grown on 
premises. 

(d) Dude ranch, riding academy, or public stable, day camp, private camp (including church 
camps), country clubs, private clubs, gold courses, parks, camping ground and 
recreational areas, playground, playfields and government structures. 

(e) Game preserves, wildlife management areas, fish hatcheries and refuges, water 
reservoirs, control structures and wells. 

(f) Churches, monasteries, convents, temporary revival establishments, cemeteries, 
columbarium and mausoleums.   

(g) Schools, colleges, and universities with conventional academic curricula. 
(h) Airports 
(i) Home occupations, day nurseries and kindergartens. 

 
 
2-304.2. Conditional Uses that may be permitted in AG zoning. 

(a) Sawmills, borrow pits, railroad yards Recreation - Resource-based  
(b) Radio or television broadcasting offices, studios, transmitters, antennas, line-of-sight 

relay servicesAssembly  
(c) Recreation - Activity-based  
(d) Garbage dumps and sanitary landfills, provided state and county health requirements are 

met.Overnight Recreational Park 
(e) Racetracks for vehicles and animals Essential Public Services 



(f) Animal hospitals, veterinary clinics, animal boarding places, fur farms, dog kennels, 
provided no structure for the housing of animals shall be located within 200 feet of any 
residence of difference ownership. 

 
2-304.3. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density, intensity and height 
requirements shall be observed in the AG zoning district and are organized based on the use.   
 

(a) Generally, including accessory structures: 
 

(1) Minimum required lot area: 1-acre 
(2) Minimum required lot width: 100 feet 
(3) Minimum required front yard: 25 feet 
(4) Minimum required rear yard setback: 20 feet 
(5) Minimum required side yard setback: 10 ft 
(6) Minimum required setback from waterfront or wetlands: 25 feet 
(7) Minimum living area: NA 
(8) Maximum lot coverage: 35 percent 
(9) Maximum structure heights: 35 feet 

 
(b) Residential—Single Family: 

(1) Minimum required lot area: 1-acre 
(2) Minimum required lot width: 100 feet 
(3) Minimum required front yard setback: 25 feet 
(4) Minimum required rear yard setback: 20 feet 
(5) Minimum required side yard setback: 10 ft 
(6) Minimum required setback from waterfront or wetlands: 25 feet 
(7) Minimum living area: 700 
(8) Maximum lot coverage: 35 percent 
(9) Maximum structure heights: 35 feet 

 
 
2-306  Residential-Mobile Home Park (RMH) – The following rules and regulations shall 
govern the establishment and operations of Mobile Home Parks in Welaka’s RMH zoning 
district. Nothing herein shall prevent the Town from requiring or the developer from requesting a 
PUD overlay district provided the terms and conditions are generally consistent with the 
underlying RMH zoning district.  
 
2-306.1 Dimensional and Intensity Controls for the mobile home park development in RMH 
zoning:  
 

(a) Minimum acreage: Five (5) acres 
(b) Maximum Density: Density requirements of the applicable future land use category or 8 

mobile home units per gross acre, whichever is less. 
(c) Minimum Road Frontage: 100 feet (all roadways abutting the park) 
(d) Minimum width of developed area: 200 ft.  
(e) Minimum set-back requirements for mobile home park: 



(1) Front yard setback: 25 ft. 
(2) Side and rear yard setback: 15 ft. 

(f) Maximum coverage by all buildings, structures, and impervious surfaces: 60%. 
 

2-306.2 Dimensional Requirements for homesites within the mobile home park development in 
RMH zoning: 

 
(a) Minimum Lot Size:  2500 square feet 
(b) Minimum Lot Width: Forty (40) feet. 

 
2-306.3. Supplementary Standards for RMH Zoning. 
 
(a) Water supply and sewage disposal shall be connected to the Town’s central water and sewer 

system unless the Town Council, upon application of the developer, grants a waiver to this 
connection requirement because the facilities are not available at the time of development 
and the Town Council determines that extension of the Town’s water and sewer facilities is 
not financially feasible.  Septic systems are prohibited, and any required on-site water supply 
or wastewater treatment shall be designed to allow for connection to the Town’s water and 
wastewater facilities should they become available. 
 

(b) Stormwater facilities shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the design 
standards set forth section ____ of this code and the requirements of the St Johns River Water 
Management District, whichever is more stringent. 
 

(c) The park shall have frontage on a paved road with direct access to a paved collector roadway, 
 

(d) Access drives and internal roadways shall be paved and shall be owned and maintained by 
the park owner. 
 

(e) Each home site shall have paved off-street parking sufficient for accommodating a minimum 
of two vehicles.  
 

(f) Internal roadways shall have adequate street lighting located every 200 feet, which shall be 
installed at the expense of the developer and maintained by the developer. 
 

(g) A11 mobile homes shall be properly skirted at all time and tied down in accordance with the 
Florida Building Code. 
 

(h) Each mobile home site shall be provided with a concrete patio slab no less than 60 square 
feet in size.. 
 

(i) Occupying a transient recreational vehicle (RV) may be allowed provided the RV is located 
on an individual home site complete with water, sewer and electrical hook ups, there is not 
more than one RV per homesite regardless of whether the RV is occupied, and the maximum 
stay is not less than 30 days and not more than 180 days in any one mobile home park. 
 



(j) The property shall be screened and buffered from neighboring properties in accordance with 
the standards set forth in Section __ of this code. 
 

(k) Additional amenities for the exclusive use of the residents, including but not limited to 
Activity Base Recreational uses and laundry facilities, may be allowed subject to the 
applicable design standards and only to the extent such amenities are allowed in the SR or 
MR zoning districts.  
 

(l) Nothing herein shall be interpreted to waive the minimum requirements of the laws of the 
State of Florida governing mobile home parks. Each developer or park owner shall, at a 
minimum, comply with the requirements of state law governing the development and 
maintenance of the park and its amenities. To the extent there is a conflict between state law 
and this code, the stricter provisions shall apply.   

 
2-307  Recreational Vehicle Resort (RVR) – The RVR district is established to provide a land 
designation and make available a use classification approval for lands to be used for the parking 
and accommodation of recreational vehicles as defined by 320.01(1)(b), Florida Statutes. Except 
as specifically modified within a given zoning district, the establishment of any RV site(s) in any 
other zoning district shall be governed by these provisions. Sites in recreational vehicle resort 
facilities shall be occupied only by recreational vehicle-type units as that term is defined in 
Section 320.01(1) (b), Florida Statutes and shall only be used for temporary habitation related to 
travel, vacation, and recreation purposes. Nothing herein shall prevent the Town from requiring 
or the developer from requesting a PUD overlay district provided the terms and conditions are 
generally consistent with the underlying RVR zoning district. 
 
2-307.1. Dimensional and Intensity Controls for the resort: 
 

(a) Minimum acreage: Fifteen (15) acres 
(b) Maximum Density: Fifteen sites per acre. 
(c) Minimum Road Frontage: 60 feet (all roadways abutting the resort) 
(d) Minimum width of developed area: ___ ft.  
(e) Minimum set-back requirements for the resort boundary: 

(1) Front yard, waterfront, and wetland setback: 25 ft. 
(2) Side and rear yard setback: 15 ft. 

(f) Maximum coverage by all buildings, structures and impervious surfaces: 60 %. 
 
2-307.2. Dimensional Requirements for recreational vehicle and cabin sites in RVR: 
 

(a) Minimum Lot Size Per Site:  1500 square feet 
(b) Minimum Lot Width per Site: Thirty-five (35) feet 
(c) Minimum Parking Pad Dimensions: 12 ft wide by 40 ft long (each RV site must be able 

to accommodate at least one RV and a vehicle parking space no less than 10ft by 20 ft in 
size) 

(d) Minimum separation between sites and other improvements:  
(1) Front yard: 5 ft from closest edge of the abutting access travel way. For purpose 

of this separation, any required stormwater or other utility improvements that abut 



or make use of the travel way shall be considered a part of the travel way for 
establishing this separation. Pull through RV sites shall be treated as double 
frontage and shall meet the required 5 ft from the abutting travel way at both 
frontages. 

(2) Rear and side yard separation required between each site: 5 feet  
(3) Waterfront and delineated wetlands: 25 feet 
(4) Minimum square footage for a park trailer or cabin:  400 square feet 
(5) Maximum height for a park trailer or cabin: 25 feet 

 
2-307.3. Supplementary Standards for RVR zoning. 
 

(a) Water and Wastewater. Water supply and sewage disposal shall be connected to the 
Town’s central water and sewer system unless the Town Council, upon application of the 
developer, grants a waiver to this connection requirement because the facilities are not 
available at the time of development and the Town Council determines that extension of 
the Town’s water and sewer facilities is not financially feasible.  Septic systems are 
generally prohibited for uses allowed under this zoning district, and any required on-site 
water supply or wastewater treatment shall be designed a centralized on-site facility that 
designed in such a manner as to allow for ease of connection to the Town’s water and 
wastewater facilities should they become available. 
 

(b) Stormwater facilities shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the design 
standards set forth section ____ of this code and the requirements of the St Johns River 
Water Management District, whichever is more stringent. 
 

(c) The resort shall have frontage on a paved road with direct access to a paved collector 
roadway. 
 

(d) Access drives and internal roadways shall be paved and shall be owned and maintained 
by the resort owner. 
 

(e) Internal roadways shall have adequate street lighting located every 200 feet, which shall 
be installed at the expense of the developer and maintained by the developer. 
 

(f) Mobile homes shall be prohibited in RVR zoning. 
 

(g) Each RV site shall be paved and provided with a concrete patio slab. 
 

(h) Occupying a transient recreational vehicle (RV) may be allowed provided the RV is 
located on an individual home site complete with water, sewer and electrical hook ups, 
there is no more than one RV per homesite, and the maximum stay is not more than __ 
days in any one mobile home park. 
 

(i) The property shall be screened and buffered from neighboring properties in accordance 
with the standards set forth in Section __ of this code. 
 



(j) Additional amenities for the exclusive use of the residents, including but not limited to 
Activity Base Recreational uses and laundry facilities, may be allowed subject to the 
applicable design standards and only to the extent such amenities are allowed in the SR 
or MR zoning districts. 
 

(k) Nothing herein shall be interpreted to waive the minimum requirements of the laws of the 
State of Florida governing recreational vehicle parks. Each developer or resort owner 
shall, at a minimum, comply with the requirements of state law governing the 
development and maintenance of the resort and its amenities. To the extent there is a 
conflict between state law and this code, the stricter provisions shall apply.   

 
2-308  Tourist Commercial (TC). The TC zoning district is a commercial use district located in 
the areas shown on the official Zoning Map of the Town of Welaka, that is dedicated to 
commercial uses that directly support tourism within the Town limits to which the following 
regulations shall apply. 
 
2-308.1. Uses Permitted. 
 

(a) Fish Camps and Marinas.Marinas, which may include boat slips on the water for live-
aboard boats 

(b) Motels and HotelsRetail Sales – Food. 
(c) Restaurants, including drive-in restaurant Lodging. 
(d) Gift, novelty and curio shops and similar uses. (Catering to tourist trade) Cultural. 
(e) Travel trailer parks and campgrounds; Overnight Parking – Recreational Vehicles. 
(f) Recreation - Resource-based. 

 
2-308.2. Uses Prohibited.  The following uses or structures are expressly prohibited in TC 
zoning: 
 

(a) Mobile homes as defined under 320.01(2)(a), Florida Statutes. 
(b) All forms of primitive camping, including but limited to tent camping. 

 
2-308.3. The length of stay allowed for any Lodging, Recreational Vehicle Unit or Marina shall 
be transient in nature, and permanent single or multifamily residences are generally prohibited 
except as provided under section 2-308.5, below. 
 
2-308.4. Conditional Use Permitted.  
 

(a) Retail Sales – General, provided it is specifically oriented to visitors and 
tourism Uses allowed in C-1 zoning where the proposed goods and services are 
demonstrated to be primarily directed to travelers, visitors, or tourism. 

(b) An establishment of facility for the retail sale and service of all alcoholic 
beverages for consumption either on-premises or off-premises or both.    

 
2-308.5. Accessory Uses and Structures Permitted.  
 



In addition to typical accessory uses and structures that are supporting an allowed 
primary use in a manner consistent with this code, if determined to be a reasonable and 
typical to nature of a permitted use, an accessory single-family dwelling unit may be 
permitted for occupancy by an owner or employee thereof who is responsible for the 
care, maintenance and security of the premises provided it functions as a single-family 
dwelling unit as defined herein and can be located so as to meet the minimum 
dimensional requirements of SR-1 zoning.  It may be attached or detached from the 
principal permitted use. Mobile homes and park models (aka park trailers) are 
prohibited structures for the accessory dwelling unit described herein. 
 
2-308.5. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density intensity and 
height of building requirements shall be observed in TC zoning:  
 

(a) Minimum required lot area: None 
(b) Minimum required lot width: None 
(c) Minimum required front yard: 25 feet 
(d) Minimum required rear yard: 15 feet 
(e) Minimum required side yard: 5 feet 
(f) Minimum setback required from waterfront or wetlands: 25 feet. 
(g) Minimum required living area of any cabin or park trailer: 400 

square feet 
(h) Maximum impervious surface (including all vertical and 

horizontal improvements): None 80% 
(i) Maximum structure height: 35 feet 
(j) Any proposed RV park or campground shall, at a minimum, follow the dimensional 

and intensity controls established under the RVR zoning district for the individual 
site requirements, including the maximum density on a given park or campground. 

 
2-308.6. Off-Street Parking. 
 
Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided as set forth in Section __ hereof. 
 
2-309  Commercial, Neighborhood (C-1). The C-1 district is a commercial mixed use zoning 
district allows for residential uses as well as commercial uses that are intended to serve the daily 
needs of contiguous neighborhoods. 
 
2-309.1. Uses Permitted in C-1 zoning. 
 

(a) Residential – Single Family dwelling units conforming to the requirements of the SR-1 
district. 

(b) Residential – Multiple family Family residential uses conforming to the requirements of 
the MR-1 district. 

(c) Art Museums. Cultural 
(d) Bakeries where all goods are sold on the premises at retail. Retail Uses – General 
(e) Drug Stores. Retail Uses – Food, but not drive-in, drive-thru or fast food retaurants.  
(f) Electrical appliance sale and repair.. Services. 



(g) Florist shops and greenhouses for retail trade only Office. 
(h) Funeral homes.Assembly 
(i) Grocery, fruit or vegetable stores.  
(j) Hotels and Motels.Lodging. 
(k) Indoor theaters and auditoriums.Governmental. 
(l) Laundromats and launderettes. 
(m) Meat markets and poultry stores if no slaughter or stripping involved. 
(n) Municipal buildings including City Hall, Libraries and Fire Stations excluding garages, 

maintenance shops, jails and correctional institutions.  
(o) Offices. 
(p) Photographers' or artists' studios. 
(q) Professional offices. 
(r) Radio and television sales and service shops. 
(s) Radio and televisions broadcasting studios. 
(t) Signs conforming to the requirements of the Town's Sign Ordinance. 
(u) Tailor and dressmaking shops. 
(v) Telephone exchange buildings. 
(w) Temporary building incidental only to construction of a permitted use. 
(x) Restaurants, except drive-in and fast-food restaurants.  

 
2-309.2. Conditional Use Permitted. 
 

(a) Shopping Centers  
(b) Banks 
(c) Medical Clinics 
(b)(d) Pharmacy 

 
2-309.3 Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density intensity and height of 
building requirements shall be observed in C-1 zoning:  
 

(a) Minimum required lot area: None 
(b) Minimum required lot width: None 
(c) Minimum required front yard: 25 feet 
(d) Minimum required rear yard: 15 feet 
(e) Minimum required side yard: 5 feet 
(f) Minimum required from waterfront or wetlands: 25 feet 
(g) Minimum required square footage: 400 square feet 
(h) Maximum square footage: 10,000 square feet 
(i) Maximum impervious surface (including all vertical and horizontal improvements): None 

80% 
(j) Maximum structure height: 35 feet 

 
Variances to these dimensional or intensity controls established for C-1 shall not be allowed. Any 
of the permitted or conditional uses listed above that would exceeds these dimensional or 
intensity controls must be located in C-2 or IL zoning and shall be governed by the standards 
established for those zoning districts.  



2-309.4. Off-Street Parking 
 
Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided as set forth in Section ____ hereof. 
 
2-310  Commercial, General (C-2) The C-2 district is a commercial mixed use zoning district 
allows for residential uses as well as commercial uses that are intended to serve the daily needs 
of contiguous neighborhoods. 
 
2-310.1. Uses Permitted in C-2 zoning.  
 

(a) Athletic' Clubs and Health Studios. 
(b) Self-service and coin operated car wash establishments where no gasoline or service is 

provided. 
(c) Bowling Alleys 
(d) Business, music, dance, or commercial schools. 
(e) Dry cleaning plants that only use automatic self-contained cleaning machines with a 

capacity of 40 pounds or less per load and using non-inflammable toxic dry cleaning 
solvents. 

(f) Pet shops or animal hospitals, when conducted wholly within an enclosed building, 
provided no boarding facilities are provided. 

(g) Drive-in and fast-food restaurants. 
(h) Retail sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption off the premises. 
(i) Banks, including drive-up tellers. 
(j) Shopping Centers 
(k) Any uses permitted in C-1 zoning by right, subject to any conditions expressly placed on 

the uses either in the C-1 zoning provisions or elsewhere in this code. 
 
2-310.2. Conditional Uses Permitted in C-2 zoning. 
 

(a) Gasoline Service Stations. 
(b) Automotive, new and used, sales and service. 

Drive-in Theaters. 
(c) Automotive body, repair and paint shops. 
(d) Sale of Alcoholic Beverages for consumption on the premises. 
(d)(e) Uses allowed by conditional use permit in C-1 zoning. 

 
2-310.3. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density intensity and height of 
building requirements shall be observed in C-2 zoning:  
 

(a) Minimum required lot area:   None 
(b) Minimum required lot width:   None 
(c) Minimum required front yard:  25 feet 
(d) Minimum required rear yard:   15 feet 
(e) Minimum required side yard:    5 feet 
(f) Minimum setback from waterbody/wetlands: 25 feet 
(g) Minimum required square footage:   1,000 square feet 



(h) Maximum square footage:    30,000 square feet 
(i) Maximum impervious surface:   80% 
(j) Maximum structure height:    35 feet 

 
2-310.4. Required off-street parking spaces in C-2 shall be provided as set forth in Section ____ 
hereof. 
 
2-311  Industrial – Light (IL). The Industrial – Light zoning district is established to provide 
land for the development of light industrial manufacturing and warehousing uses which are not 
objectionable to surrounding land use regarding odor, fumes, noise, heavy truck or heavy 
equipment traffic, and smoke. The districts regulations are designed to protect those areas 
suitable for light industrial development from encroachment by incompatible commercial and 
residential uses. However, those commercial and service uses, which complement light industry, 
will be permitted. 
 
2-311.1. Uses Permitted in IL Zoning.  
 

(a) Wholesale, warehouse, mini-storage, storage or distribution establishments and similar 
uses. 

(b) Light manufacturing establishments including but not limited to the manufacturing and or 
assembly of furniture, bedding, garments, scientific, electrical and optical equipment, 
leather goods (not tanning), souvenirs and novelty items, cabinet shops and small engines, 
conducted wholly indoors. 

(c) Advertising, printing, screen printing, lithographing, publishing or similar establishments.  
(d) General and building trade contractors including carpentry, masonry, electrical and 

plumbing contractors, with no outside storage unless properly stored and screened from 
view on all side. 

(e) Service establishments catering to commerce and industry including linen supply, laundry, 
dry cleaning plants, freight movers, communication services, business machine services, 
restaurants including drive ins, hiring and union halls, employment agencies, gasoline 
dispensing and similar uses. 

(f) Well-drilling companies and related uses; provided any outside storage area must be 
screened from public view on all sides, along any street frontage or lot line. 

(g) Telecommunications  
(h) All essential public services 
(i) Federal, State, County or Town owned and operated buildings or uses 
(j) Establishments processing food and kindred products such as bottling and canning, meat 

packing and dairy processing plants. Slaughterhouses are not permitted. 
(k) Vocational, technical, trade or industrial schools and similar uses 
(k)(l) Hospitals 

 
2-311.2. Conditional Uses Permitted in IL Zoning. 
 

(a) Research and experimental testing laboratories  
(b) Automobile, truck and boat repair facilities 
(c) Service stations and truck stops 



(d) Transportation terminals, commercial parking lots and garages, express office and 
terminal facilities and similar uses. 

 
2-311.3. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density intensity and height of 
building requirements shall be observed in IL zoning: 

(a) Minimum lot size: Shall be determined by type of use, required setbacks, parking and 
other applicable provisions of the Land Development Code. 

(b) Minimum lot width at building line: none.  
(c) Minimum building setbacks: 

(1) Front yard: 25 feet.  
(2) Side yard: 15 feet.  
(3) Rear yard: 15 feet. 

 
(d) Maximum building height: 35 feet; 45 feet if the side and rear yard set backs are increased 

one (1) foot for every two (2) feet of height in excess of 35 feet. 
(e) Maximum impervious surface: 80% 

 
2-311.4. Accessory uses and structures are permitted in the IL District provided that such uses and 
structures are of a nature customarily incidental and clearly subordinate to a permitted or principal 
use or structure. Accessory uses shall not involve operations or structures not in keeping with the 
character of the district and shall be subject to the following: 
 

(a) All accessory structures and equipment, including but not limited to air conditioning 
compressors or other equipment that is designated to serve the main structure may be 
located in any required side or rear yard, but no closer than 10 feet from any lot line, but 
shall not be located in any required front yard. 

(b) An accessory single-family dwelling may be located on the same site with the permitted 
principal use if the single-family dwelling is to be used for occupancy by the owner or 
watchman where business or employment requires residence on the site; except that 
mobile homes and park models shall not be allowable structures to serve as the accessory 
dwelling unit, and the dwelling unit shall meet the minimum building setbacks for a 
primary use in the IL district as set forth above. 

(c) Uses accessory to the dwelling referred in paragraph (2) two as if such dwelling were in a 
residential district. 

 
2-312  Public Buildings and Grounds-1 (P-1). The Public Buildings and Grounds-1 (P-1) 
district is intended for the construction of government administrative offices, schools, hospitals, 
churches, museums and other similar public, semi-public or governmental buildings. 
 
2-312.1. Uses Permitted in P-1 Zoning.  
 

(a) Cultural 
(b) Governmental 
(c) Emergency Services 
(a)(d) Institutions of education including grammar, middle and secondary schools, 

colleges and universities. 



(b)(e) Art galleries, libraries, museums. 
(c)(f) Nursing or retirement homes. 
(d)(g) Hospital 
(e)(h) Churches, including rectory or similar uses. 
(f)(i) Cemetery. 

 
2-312.2. Conditional Uses Permitted in P-1 Zoning. 
 

(a) Private clubs. 
(b) Criminal justice facilities, not including prisons. 
(c) Water treatment plants, but not wastewater treatment plants. 

 
2-312.3. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density intensity and height of 
building requirements shall be observed in P-1 zoning: 
 

(a) Minimum lot size: Shall be determined by type of use, required setbacks, parking and 
other applicable provisions of the Land Development Code. 

(b) Minimum lot width at building line: none.  
(c) Minimum building setbacks: 

(1) Front yard: 25 feet.  
(2) Side yard: 15 feet.  
(3) Rear yard: 15 feet. 

(d) Maximum building height: 40 feet. 
(e) Maximum impervious surface: 65% 

 
The dimensional and intensity controls for uses in P-1 district may be adjusted if deemed 
necessary to properly implement the proposed use and to serve the public interest as determined 
by the Town Council upon recommendation of the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board. 
 
2-313  Public Buildings and Grounds-2 (P-2). The Public Buildings and Grounds-2 (P-2) 
district is intended for intensive public and semi-public uses such as potable water, sanitary 
sewer treatment facilities, transportation, stormwater/drainage control structures, electrical 
substations intended for distribution beyond the Town limits, and related uses. 
 
2-313.1. Uses Permitted in P-2 Zoning.  
 
(a) Landfills. Essential Public Services 
(b) Sanitary sewer treatment plant.Uses permitted in P-1 zoning. 
(c) Equipment storage/repair yards. 
(d) Prison. 
(e) Fuel storage depot. 
 
2-313.2. Conditional Uses Permitted in P-2 Zoning. 
 
Other intensive public service uses owned and operated by a federal, state or local government 
entity as approved by the Town Council upon the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 



Board. 
 
2-313.3. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density intensity and height of 
building requirements shall be observed in P-2 zoning: 
 

(a) Minimum lot size: Shall be determined by type of use, required setbacks, parking and 
other applicable provisions of the Land Development Code. 

(b) Minimum lot width at building line: none.  
(c) Minimum building setbacks: 

(1) Front yard: 25 feet.  
(2) Side yard: 15 feet.  
(3) Rear yard: 15 feet. 

(d) Maximum building height: 50 feet. 
(e) Maximum impervious surface: 65% 

 
The dimensional and intensity controls for uses in P-2 district may be adjusted if deemed 
necessary to properly implement the proposed use and to serve the public interest as determined 
by the Town Council upon recommendation of the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board. 
 
2-314  Conservation (CN) The Conservation (CN) district is established for the purpose of 
conserving or protecting natural resources including ground water, surface water, wildlife 
habitats, vegetative communities, floodplains, wetlands, seepage streams, slope forests, spring 
run streams, sandhill upland lakes, listed endangered species, scrub uplands, longleaf pine-xeric  
oak vegetative communities, or any public and private lands acquired for the purpose of 
preservation.    
 
2-314.1. Uses Permitted in CN Zoning.  
 

(a) Recreation – Resource-Based 
(b) Local, county or state forests, parks, sanctuaries or preserves. 
(c) Pub11c or private w11d11fe management areas. 

 
2-314.2. Conditional Uses Permitted in CN Zoning. 
 

(a) Agriculture – General (nc1ud1ng silviculture) subject to the owner or operator of the use 
formally accepting, implementing, and maintaining the Best Management Practices 
established by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services’ Best 
Management Practices (BMP) programs for agriculture or silviculture. 

(b) Residentia1 at a maximum of l unit per 5 acres, subject to the following: 
(1) Residential uses on publicly owned or operated land in the CN district shall be 

limited to caretaker residential uses. 
(2) Residential development on privately-owned lands shall be limited to a maximum 

density of one dwelling unit per five acres (1 d.u./5 acres). 
 
2-314.3. Dimensional and Intensity Controls. The following yard, density intensity and height of 
building requirements shall be observed in CN zoning: 



 
(a) Minimum lot size: 5 acres. 
(b) Minimum lot width at building line: 100 ft.  
(c) Minimum building setbacks: 

(1) Front yard: 25 feet.  
(2) Side yard: 15 feet.  
(3) Rear yard: 20 feet. 
(4) Waterfront or wetland setbacks: 25 ft. 

(d) Maximum building height: 35ft. 
(e) Maximum impervious surface: 10% 

 
2-315  Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
2-315.1 – Purpose and Intent of the PUD Zoning District  
 

(a) The PUD zoning district is established in the Town of Welaka’s Comprehensive Plan, 
which provides that the purposes of the PUD district are  (1) to improve the use of land 
where topography does not permit the application of the standard grid pattern subdivision 
of land, (2) to introduce more than one land use within a development complex, for 
example, creation and commercial activities within a mobile home park, or (3) to cluster 
homes, business, or other uses within a development in order to improve the efficiency of 
supporting infrastructure. 

(b) These PUD provisions are intended to promote flexibility of design and integration of 
uses and structures, while at the same time retaining in the Town the absolute authority to 
establish limitations and regulations thereon for the benefit of the public health, welfare, 
and safety.  
 

2-315.2 – Justification and Minimum Requirements for Rezoning to Planned Unit Development. 
 

(a) An applicant for a PUD rezoning must present evidence in the PUD Narrative that the 
rezoning to PUD is justified by one or more of the following: 
  
(1) The proposed development is unique. Although it does not fit within an existing 

zoning district, it is consistent with the county comprehensive plan.  The land use 
designation on the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan shall be such 
that it allows the proposed activity of the PUD prior to any application for rezoning to 
this designation being accepted.    

(2) The proposed development is of such size, scale, complexity, and/or unique design 
that it would be inconvenient and inefficient to process such a proposal outside the 
PUD process.  

(3) The nature of the proposed use at a specific site requires specialized design 
characteristics to preserve and protect neighborhood character, environmental 
concerns and other concerns unique to the immediate area, consistent with 
comprehensive plan policies.  
 

(b) The applicant for the PUD rezoning must further present evidence in the aforementioned 



PUD Narrative that the rezoning to PUD meets each of the following standards: 
(1) The density and/or intensity, character and type of development proposed in the 

development plan is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, future land use map, 
and the concurrency management system.  

(2) The land uses proposed within a PUD are compatible with the terrain and the existing 
and planned uses of properties surrounding the PUD. An evaluation of the external 
compatibility of a PUD should be based on the following factors: (1) adjacent 
existing and proposed uses, (2) design of the development to avoid undue noise, odor, 
traffic or other nuisances and other nuisances and dangers to abutting property 
owners; (3) traffic circulation to ensure the transportation system and streets are of 
sufficient width and capacity to serve the demands created by the development; and 
(4) density and/or intensity including type and size of structures and/.or units and 
height shall be considered to address compatibility.    

(3) The residential density of the PUD complies with the density and intensity limitations 
for each land use category that may be applicable to the use proposed within the 
PUD.  

(4) The PUD provides for usable open spaces, plazas and recreation areas within a PUD 
that are sufficient to provide appropriate recreational opportunities, protect sensitive 
environmental areas, conserve areas of unique beauty or historical significance, 
enhance neighborhood design, and encourage compatible and cooperative 
relationships between adjoining land uses.  

(5) The site of the PUD must be suitable for use in the manner proposed without hazards 
to persons either on or off the site from the likelihood of increased flooding, erosion 
or other dangers.  

(6) Every dwelling unit or other use permitted in the PUD shall have access to a public 
street either directly or by way of a private road, pedestrian way, court or other area 
which is either dedicated to public use or is a common area guaranteeing access. 
Permitted uses are not required to front on a dedicated public road, but at a minimum, 
private roads and other access ways shall be required to be constructed so as to ensure 
that they are safe and maintainable.  To that end, all roads within any PUD, public 
and/or private, shall be constructed in accordance with design standards in this Code.   

(7) Sufficient off-street and on-street parking for automobiles, bicycles and other vehicles 
must be provided, and shall be constructed in accordance with the standards outlined 
in this Code.  The developer may propose deviations, which shall be specifically 
identified and approved by the Town to ensure that they are safe, maintainable, and 
provide sufficient privacy for adjoining uses. The design of a PUD should, whenever 
feasible, incorporate appropriate pedestrian and bicycle access ways to provide a 
variety of mobility opportunities. Connection to all sidewalks, greenways, trails, 
bikeways, and transit stops along the perimeter of the PUD is required. Where 
existing perimeter sidewalks do not exist, sidewalks may be provided by the Town, if 
deemed necessary due to the nature of the proposed uses within the PUD.  

(8) Utilities and essential public services, including but not limited to, sanitary sewer, 
potable water, fire abatement services or appurtenances, solid waste, and other 
services must be available and have capacity to serve the development.   
 

2-315.3 – Application Requirements for Rezoning to PUD 



  
(a) In addition to the standard rezoning application requirements, a request to rezone to PUD 

shall provide the written report demonstrating compliance with section 2-315.2, and a 
proposed PUD ordinance that includes:.    
(1) Written findings complying with subparagraph 2-315.3(b) below; 
(2) A proposed Development Agreement; 
(3) The Development Plan for the PUD; 
(4) The schedule for development of the PUD; 
(5) The legal description of the area within the PUD; and 
(6) Language requiring the proposed development shall proceed in accordance with the 

PUD Ordinance, inclusive of the Development Agreement and the Development Plan, 
and shall be binding on the Applicant’s successors in title or interest. 
 

(b) The Board’s decision to adopt the ordinance must be based on the findings listed below. 
(1) The request for a rezoning to PUD is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
(2) The PUD meets the general intent and development standards of the Town’s Land 

Development Code even though it differs in one or more respects from the usual 
application of the standards in the Code. 
  

(c) Specific development plans must be submitted according to the schedule adopted as part 
of the PUD Ordinance. Such development plans shall be in the form of a subdivision plat 
or a site plan, as applicable.   
(1) In the case where a PUD involves one or more subdivision plats, final development 

plans must follow the general requirements for subdivision approval provided in this 
Code. 

(2) For all mixed use or non-residential PUD developments, the staff and the Planning 
and Zoning Board shall review the plans must find the site plans consistent with the 
PUD Ordinance.   

 
(d) Time Limits. The development of the PUD must proceed according to the schedule for 

development   included in the PUD Ordinance.  Where no time frames have been 
specified the expiration date shall be twenty-four (24) months from the date of adoption 
of the PUD Ordinance.  If time limits contained in the approved PUD are not complied 
with and not extended for good cause, the Town may initiate rezoning of the property or 
any part of it, and/or amend the approved PUD development plan, so as to best protect 
adjoining properties and the public health, safety or welfare.  No development shall be 
permitted under an expired PUD.  
   

(e) Extensions of time:  Applicants may request extensions of time on PUD Ordinances. 
Extensions may be granted only upon a showing by the applicant that reasonable efforts 
have been made towards securing the required permits and commencing work on the 
project, that any proposed amendment of the development plan will serve to the benefit 
of the Town and the project, and the extension is based upon good cause, as determined 
by the Town Council. Requests for extensions of time shall be treated as a substantial 
amendment and shall be processed and heard in the same manner as an original PUD 
rezoning application. If applicable, any such extension must include a renewed 



Certificate of Concurrency, building permit, site plan approval, development agreement 
or other development order.   

 
(f) Permits.  No building permit, certificate, or other document authorizing construction or 

occupancy within a PUD shall be issued except in accordance with the approved 
development plan. 

 
2-315.4 – Unified control  
 

(a) All land included in any PUD shall be under the complete, unified, legal, otherwise-
encumbered control of the applicant, whether the applicant be an individual, partnership, 
corporation, other entity, group or agency.  

(b) The applicant shall furnish the Town sufficient evidence to the satisfaction of the town 
attorney that the applicant is in complete, legal, and unified control of the entire area of 
the proposed PUD. The County Attorney may require the applicant to provide an opinion 
of its attorney to the same effect. 

(c) The application shall not be considered by the Town Council until the town attorney has 
certified in writing that the legal requirements of this section have been fully met. 
 

2-315.5 – Phasing.  
 

(a) The Town may permit or require the phasing or staging of a PUD.  
(b) When provisions for phasing are included in the development plan, each phase must be 

so planned and so related to previous development, surrounding properties and the 
available public facilities and services that a failure to proceed with subsequent phases 
will have no adverse impact on the PUD or surrounding properties.  

 
2-315.6 – PUD Development Plan.  A PUD Development Plan, whether submitted with the PUD 
rezoning application or pursuant to a time frame established in the Ordinance establishing the 
PUD, shall be submitted and reviewed pursuant to this subsection. A completed development 
review application shall be executed as required by the most current application form and shall 
comply with the following minimum submittal requirements:  
 

(a) The application shall include documents and drawings showing: 
(1) Name, address and telephone number of owner. 
(2) Legal description of property involved; 
(3) Parcel identification numbers; 
(4) Description of intended use. 
(5) Description of proposed development activities. 
(6) Location and linear dimensions and size of parcel. 
(7) A survey of property. 
(8) Development plans for all proposed project activities.  
(9) A site plan drawn to scale.  Each site plan sheet shall show (a) the north arrow (b) the 

graphic scale (c) the drawing date (d) all existing and proposed structures with the 
setbacks from each other and the property line (e) the lot coverage, and (f) the 
proposed parking and landscaping. 



 
(b) Where applicable to the development activity proposed, the Town may require the 

following to be submitted as part of the application: 
(1) Building, structure, sidewalk and pavement location, height and setback; 
(2) Location, length and width of proposed driveways and driveway alignment with 

driveways on surrounding land; 
(3) A map of vegetative cover including the location and identity by common name of all 

protected trees. Groups of trees to be protected may be designated as "clusters" with 
the estimated total number noted; 

(4) Floor plan for existing and proposed structures; 
(5) A detailed landscape plan meeting or exceeding the requirements of this Code for all 

new or existing uses; and 
(6) Sign plans, including the location of signs on the site; dimensions of all signs, 

including maximum square footage, height and width; and distance from the ground 
to the bottom of the sign display area (including borders). 
 

(c) Other material deemed by the Town or the applicant to be relevant to the proposed PUD. 
 

(d) Concurrent review of the proposed PUD zoning application and related development plan 
review application may be reviewed concurrently. 

 
2-315.7 - Master Plan 
 
A master plan is required for any development that is to be developed in phases. A master plan 
shall provide the following information:  
 

(a) A concept plan for the entire master plan area. 
 
(b) A preliminary development plan for the first phase or phases for which approval is 
sought. 
 
(c) A development phasing schedule including the sequence for each phase; approximate size 
of the area in each phase; and proposed phasing of construction of public recreation and 
common open space areas and facilities. 
 
(d) Total acreage in each phase and gross intensity (non residential) and gross density 
(residential) of each phase. 
 
(e) Number, height and type of residential units. 
 
(f) Floor area, height and types of nonresidential uses. 
 
(g) Total land area, and approximate location and amount of open space included in each 
residential, office, commercial, and industrial area. 
 



(h) Approximate location of proposed and existing streets and pedestrian and bicycle routes, 
including points of ingress and egress. 
 
(i) Approximate location and acreage of any proposed public use such as parks, school sites, 
and similar public or semipublic uses. 
 
(j) A vicinity map of the area within one (1) mile surrounding the site showing: 
 

(1) Land use designations and boundaries. 
 

(2) Traffic circulation systems. 
 

(3) Major public facilities. 
 

(4) Municipal boundary lines. 
 

(k) Other documentation necessary to permit satisfactory review under the requirements of 
this Code, the Comprehensive Plan, or other federal, state, or regional laws and 
regulations that may be applicable and required by special circumstances in the 
determination of the Town. 

 



ORDINANCE. 90-11

THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE 90-11, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 83-2. 

BEING A COMPREHENSIVE ZONING REGULATION FOR THE TOWN OF WELAKA. 

AMENDMENT TO SAID ORDINANCE IS TO INSERT INTO GENERAL COMMERCIAL -1- 

(CG-1), A DENSITY CONTROL AND ALSO MODIFYING THE DENSITY CONTROLS ON 

GENERAL COMMERCIAL -2- (GC-2) AND TOURIST COMMERCIAL (TC).

WHEREAS:

 

THE TOWN COUNCIL OF WELAKA, FLORIDA, DEEMS IT

NECESSARY FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROMOTING HEALTH, SAFETY AND 

THE GENERAL WELFARE OF THE TOWN TO AMEND SAID ORDINANCE.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF WELAKA, FLORIDA, 

THAT ORDINANCE 83-2 BE AMENDED TO READ' AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS:

 

GENERAL COMMERICAL-1- (GC-1) AND GENERAL COMMERCIAL-2

GC-2 AND TOURIST COMMERCIAL (TC), ARE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS



C-1 200 feet on east side of SR-309 from northern city limits to 

Aquarium, excepting the two blocks zoned C-2.

200 feet on west side of SR-309 from northern city limits to 

McClure Street, excepting the two blocks zoned C-2.

200 feet on either side of Elm Street from St. Johns River to 
eastern city limits, excepting four blocks at intersection of 
Elm Street and Third Avenue (SR-309) zoned C-2.

(NOTE: If residents in the area of Seventh Avenue and Elm Street 
wish.t o incorporate a C-2 zone in that area, the Planning
Commission is agreeable). 

C-2 Entire four blocks at intersection of Elm Street and Third 
Avenue (SR-309).

4. GENERAL COMMERCIAL.C.-1

Zoning map to be changed to show commercial areas:

USES PERMITTED

Land and structures shall be used only for the following purposes:

1. Single Family dwelling.

2. Multiple. family residential uses conforming to the requirements  ..
of the MR-1 district.

3. Art Museums.

4. Bakeries where all goods are sold on the premises at retail.

5. Drug Stores.

6. Electrical appliance sale and repair.`

7. Florist shops and greenhouses for retail trade only.

8. Funeral homes.

9. Grocery, fruit or vegetable stores.

10. Hotels and Motels.

11. Indoor theaters and auditoriums.;

12. Laundromats and launderettes.

13. Meat markets and poultry stores if no slaughter or stripping involved.

14. Municipal buildings including City Hall, Libraries and Fire Stations 
excluding garages, maintenance shops, jails and correctional institutions.

15. Offices.

16. Photographers' or artists' studios.

17. Professional offices.

18. Radio and television sales and service shops.

19. Radio and televisions broadcasting studios.

20. Signs conforming to the requirements of the Town's Sign Ordinance.

21. Tailor and dressmaking shops.

22. Telephone exchange buildings.

http://wish.to
http://wish.to


23. Temporary building incidental only to construction of a permitted use.

24. Restaurants, except drive-in and fast food restaurants. 

CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED :

When after review of an application and plan appurtenant thereto, the Planning 

and Zoning Commission' finds as a fact that the following proposed use or uses 

are consistent with the general zoning and other appurtenant municipal 

Ordinances and with the public interest, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

is hereby authorized to approve special permits for the following uses as 

permitted in the C-l District:

No building or structure, or part thereof, shall be erected, altered 

or used, or land or water used nor shall any building permit or certificate 

of occupancy be issued therefore, unless a development Plan for such 

building, - ,structure-or use; shall have been approved as provided herein:

(THIS HEIGHT MAY BE EXCEEDED BY A DECISION FROM THE TOWN 

COUNCIL ON AN AFFIRMATIVE RECOMMENDATION BY THE ZONING BOARD)

OFF-STREET PARKING

DENSITY CONTROL

THE FOLLOWING YARD, DENSITY AND HEIGHT OF BUILDING 
REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:

Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided as set forth 

in Section VI hereof.

GENERAL COMMERCIAL-C-2

USES PERMITTED

Land and structures shall be used only for the following purposes:

1. Shopping Centers 

2. Banks" 

C. Approval of Development Plan

1. MINMUM REQUIRED LOT AREA: NONE 

2. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT WIDTH; NONE

3. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT FRONT YARD; 25 FT

4. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT REAR YARD; 15 FT

5. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIDE YARD; 5 FT

6. MAXIMUM STRUCTURE HEIGHT; 35 FT

1. Athletic' Clubs and Health Studios.

2. Self-service and coin operated car wash establishments where no 

gasoline or service is provided.

3. Bowling Alleys

4. Business, music, dance, or commercial schools.

5. Dry cleaning plants only using automatic self-contained cleaning 

machines with a capacity of 40 pounds or less per load and using 
non-inflammable toxic dry cleaning solvents.

6. Pet shops or animal hospitals when conducted wholly within the 

enclosed building, provided no boarding facilities are provided.

7. Drive-in and fast food restaurants.



CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED IN C-2

When, after review of an application and plan appurtenant thereto, the 

Planning and Zoning Commission finds as a fact that the following proposed 

use or uses are consistent with the general zoning and other appurtenant 

municipal-ordinances=and with the public - interest,the Planning and Zoning 

Commission is hereby authorized to approve special permits for the following 

uses as permitted uses-in the C-2 District.

APPROVAL OF DEVELOPMENT PLAN

No building or structure, or part thereof, shall be erected, altered 

or used, or land or water used nor shall any building permit or certificate 

of occupancy be issued therefore, unless a development Plan for such 

building, structure or use shall have been approved as provided herein.

DENSITY CONTROLS

THE FOLLOWING YARD, DENSITY AND HEIGHT OF BUILDING 

REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:

(THIS HEIGHT MAY BE EXCEEDED BY A DECISION FROM THE TOWN 

COUNCIL ON AN AFFIRMATIVE RECOMMENDATION BY THE ZONING BOARD)

OFF-STREET PARKING

Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided as set forth 

in Section VI hereof.

TOURIST COMMERCIAL - TC

USES PERMITTED :

CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED

1. Any-retail or service use which can be shown to be primarily service 

oriented to automobile uses, tourist accommodations and supporting 

facilities.

2. An establishment of facility for the retail sale and service of all 

alcoholic beverages for consumption either on-premises or off-premises 
or both.

8. Retail sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption off the premises.

9. Any uses permitted in C-1 zone. 

l. Gasoline Service Stations.

2. Automotive, new and used, sales and service. ,

3. Drive-in Theaters.

4. Automotive body, repair and paint shops.

5. Sale of Alcoholic Beverages for consumption on the premises.

1. Fish Camps and Marinas.

2. Motels and Hotels.

3. Restaurants, including drive-in restaurant.

4. Gift, novelty and curio shops and similar uses. (Catering to 
tourist trade.

5. Travel trailer parks and camp grounds. 

l. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT AREA: _ NONE 

2. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT WIDTH: NONE

3. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT FRONT YARD: 25 FT

4. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT REAR YARD: 15 FT

5. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIDE YARD: 5 FT

6. MAXIMUM STRUCTURE HEIGHT: 35 FT



THE FOLLOWING YARD, DENSITY AND HEIGHT OF BUILDING REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE 

OBSERVED:

(THIS HEIGHT MAY BE EXCEEDED BY A DECISION FROM THE TOWN 

COUNCIL ON AN AFFIRMATIVE RECOMMENDATION BY THE ZONING BOARD)

OFF -STREET PARKING

Required off-street parking spaces SHALL be provided as set forth 

in Section VI hereof.

SECTION 1.

 

EFFECTIVE DATE. THIS ORDINANCE SHALL TAKE EFFECT

IMMEDIATELY UPON ITS FINAL PASSAGE BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF WELAKA, FLORIDA.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WELAKA, 

PUTNAM COUNTY, FLORIDA, AT A PUBLIC MEETING HELD THE 11th

DAY OF

 

December

 

, 1990.

3. Mobile.Home for.the occupancy of the owner or employee of permitted 

principal use.

ACCESSORY USES AND STRUCTURES PERMITTED

On the same premises and in connection with permitted uses and 

structures, a single-family dwelling unit for occupancy by an 

owner or employee thereof. Said single-family dwelling unit may be 

attached or detached from the principal permitted use.

DENSITY CONTROL

1. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT AREA: NONE 

2. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT WIDTH: NONE

3. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT FRONT YARD: 25 FT

4. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT REAR YARD: 15 FT

5. MINIMUM REQUIRED LOT SIDE YARD: 5 FT

6. MAXIMUM STRUCTURE HEIGHT: 35 FT



ORDINANCE NUMBER 93~_L
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN OF WELAKA ZONING

REGULATIONS (Town Ordinance No. 83-2, as amended

by Ordinances 84-2, 87-2 and AMENDING

ARTICLE III, ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS;
ARTICLE IV, APPLICATION OF REGULATIONS;
ARTICLE V, USE PROVISIONS; ARTICLE VII, GENERAL 

REGULATION PROVISIONS; ARTICLE VIII, SUPPLEMENTARY 

REGULATIONS; ARTICLE IX, ADMINISTRATION AND

ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
> PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

SECTION 1. Short Title. This Ordinance shaII be known and may be cited

Vas TOWN OF WELAKA ZONING CODE AMENDMENT 9i- 2

2. Findings of Fact.

WHEREAS, Chapter 163.3202, Florida Statutes, requires that local

ments adopt land development regulations within one year after submission

of its revised Comprehensive Plan; and '

WHEREAS,10cal land development regulations sha11 contain specific and

detailed provisions necessary or desirable to implement the adopted Compre-
hensive P1an; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the c0rrent1y adopted Zoning Code does

not fully imp1ement the Town's Comprehensive Plan 2001; and

WHEREAS, the TOWn Council of Welaka F1orida public hearings, accepted
puin-c comments, made amendments and revisions, and found the Ordinance to

be consistent with and Turther the intent of the Welaka Comprehensive PIan

200L

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Counci] of the Town of Welaka, 
Florida that:

SECTION 3.
_

Relgtipnship of this Ordinance_tp the Cgmgrehengive RJanL

This Ordinance implements and furthers the following Objectives and P011-

cies of the We1aka Comprehensive Plan 2001:

3.1 Future Land

Policies: A 1.1 4, A.1.2. 1, A. 1. 3.1, A. 1.3.2 A 1. 3 3, A. L 4.1,
A.1. 4. 4, A. 1. 4 5, 1.4. 10, A. 1.8.1, A. 1.9.1, A. 1 9.2, A 1. 9. 3, 

A.].11.3, A. L 11 4

N Traffic C1r WC

Policy: 8.1.4.2.



3.3

3.5

3.6..ngfeation Ele

Element

s: 0.1.1.2, C.1.3.1, C.1.3.2.

Conservation

Policy: E.1. 3. 5.

'

Po]icies:'.F. 1. 4. 3, F.1.4.4.

.

SECTION 4. Declaration of 1ntent and Purpose

The provisions of th1s Ordinance are intended to amend and revise the
"

Town' 5 present zoning ordinance in order to implement the Town' 5 adopted
Welaka Comprehensive P1an 2001.

SECTION 5. Amendment to ARTICLE IIIJ 1. Establishment istricts.

ARTICLE III, 1. is hereby amended to readies follows:

1. Establishment of Districts. Zoning conform with the

densitx/intensity and category of use designated for correspondinq
land uses in the Town's adopted Comprehensive Plan 2001. For the 

' 

purpose of this regulation, the area of the Town of Welaka, Florida,
is hereby divided 1ntoz zoning d1stricts destgnated which

relate to land use designations as fOIIOWS:

Zoning Zoning District Land Use Designation
Desigggtion Name Future Land Use Hep

SR-lA. Single-Fami1y Residential Low Dens1ty

DwelIing District Residential

SR-l Single- Fam11y Residential Medium Density'

Dwe111ng District 
' Residential

. Multiple-Fam11y Residential Medium to High
Dwelling Distr1ct

3
Density Residential_

TC. Tourist Commercii [Commercial

GC-l General Commercia Commercial

Genera} Commercie Commercial

. Genera] Industria
7

Industrial

AQ Agricultura] Agricultural

REC Recreational
.

Recreational and
'

Open Space

PB~I Puhlic Bu11din95*1
'

Public Buildings
and Grounds

N



Public Buildings~2
7

, Other Public 
-

'

Facilitiess

CON Conservation
. Coneervation

PUD Planned Unit Development Planned Unit
, Dev. Overlay

@. Amengment to ARTICLE Iy4_Application of Regulations-

ARTICLE IV is hereby amended to include Sections 7., 8., and 

9-, as follows:

7. eramidal Zoning. The use of Pyramidal Zoning shall be

applied to zoning determinations related to the welaka Future

.Land USe Map 2001 (FLUM 2001). Applying this concept, any

zoning district of equal or lesser intensity/deneity.of land

use in the hierarchy of land uses listed below may be

permiited a3 a zoning district to within 3 years of the date

shown on the PLUM without being condidered as a non con~

foyming land use.

Exception: No lesser intensity/density land use may be

permitted under pyramidal zoning that would be incompatible 
with Future Land Use Map~designated adjacent land uses.

Industrial

Other Public 3c1llf1es 

Commexcial

Public Facilities and Grounds 

Residential

Agricultu1al
Recreational

.i'

8. Mobile or Manufactured Homes. Mobile homes will be

permitted in accordance with F.S. 320-8285(5); and

manufactured homes will be permitted in accordance with

F.S. 553.38(2).

9. Groug Homeeu Community group residential homes shall be

permitted in accordance with F.8. 419.001.

l

SECTION 7. Amendment to ARTICLE V Use Provie1ons.

ARTICLE V is hereby amended to include the addition of

Sections addressing Zoning Districts IG (General Industrial),
REC (Recweational), 1 (Public Buildings and Grounds), PB 2 

(Other Public Facilities), CON (Cons ervation) and PUD

(Planned Unit Development) as follows:

7. I6. GENERAg IMDUSIBIAL DISTRICT. The Industrial zoning

district is established to provide land for the dev. of



light industrial type activities which are compatible with adja-
cent land uses and with Town economic goals.

A. Uses Permitted.

(l) Wholesaling, warehousing, storage or distribution
'. ities.

-
v (2) Light manufacturing, procesSing, packaging or fabr1cati

'

ing.
(3) Printing, publishing or similar estainshments.

(4) Laundry or dry cleaning pIants.
(5) Fre1gnt or trucking terminals.

.
.

:

(6) Bulk storage yards.
'

(7) Heavy equipment or machinery storage yards.

Cohditighal Usestermitted.

(1) Chemical manufacturing or storage,
(2) Recycling facilities or yards.

1 - (3) Concrete batch mixing plants. V

- C. ansity Controls.

land use may be developed at an intensity of up
-

"

. to 80 percent of site coverage incIuding parking area.

8. EEC RECREATIONAL DISTRICT. Land designated for recreation is

intended for a variety of Ieisure-time activities which may in-

clude facilities or may re1y on natural undisturbed Iand or water

for the conduct of outdoor recreation or sport activities.

A. Uses pgrmitted

1. Camp or camp grounds
2. Playgrounds and sport playfields
3. Fairgrounds

B. QonditionaI Usgs germitted

1. Public buildings and fac111ties providing essential

services.

2. Rid1ng Academy

'ZImpervious surface land coverage shall hbt exceed 35 percent
for active recreational development; 10 percent for passive
recreational development.

New recreational fac111ties must be sited in locations which

are compatible or-can be made compatible with adjacent land



9.

10.

11.

PB-l PUBLIC BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS DISTRICT. Land designated
as PF 1 allows uses and activities that provide community service

Ifunctions that normally do not require heavy machinery in fulfilling
the facilities' main mission.

A. Uses permitted

l. Institutions including grammar, middle and secondary
schools, colleges and universities.

2. Art gaTTeries, libraries, museums.

3. Nursing or retirement homes.

4. Hospitals 2

5. Churches, including rectory or similar uses.

6. Cemetery.

gonditional uses permitted.

1. Private clubs.
,

2. Criminal, justice facilities (courts).
3. Water treatment piants.

Density centroig;

Intensity or development, as measured by impervious coverage

of surface; shall not exceed 65 percent; maximum height
shall not exceed 40 feet.

PB- 2 OTHER PUBLIC FACILITIES DISTRICT. Land designated as

PF- 2 allows for uses and activities of a public benefit that may

use heavy equipment in their operation or embody an aspect that

is normally considered to be a Tocaiiy undesirable Tand uses.

A. Uses permitted.

Land fills.

Sanitary sewer treatment plant.
Equipment storage/repair yards.
Prison.

Fuel storage depot.

Conditional uses permitted.

As approved by the City Commission upon recommendation of

the City Planning and Zoning Commission.

'Density Controls.

The intensity of use for these faciiities is dependent upon

the use. Density/intensity will be as permitted by the City
Commission upon recommendation of the City Planning and

Zoning Commission.

CON CONSERVATIQN DISTRICT This district allows for uses

which are consistent with the primary goal of preserving natural



habitat. Use potential of these areas is 11m1ted to natural open
space, limited recreat1on use and resource protect1on.

'A. Uses perm1tted.

1. LocaI, county or state forests, parks, sanctuar1es and
"

preserves.
2. Pub11c and private w11d11fe management areas.

8; \DConditiohal uses perm1tted.

1. AgricuIture (1nc1ud1ng siIvicuIture) us1ng Best Manage-
ment P011cies.

2. Res1dent1a1 hous1ng at a max1mum of l un1t per 5 acres.

C.
.

Qensitx controls.

Construct1on 1n wetlands/floodplains must sat1sfy the City
Floodplain Protect1on Qrd1nance.

12. PUD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT_ See ARTICLE VIII, Sec-
tion I.

,

'

'

:9

SECTION 8. Amendment to Art1c1e VII. General Regulat1on Provisions

ARTICLE VII 15 hereby amended to 1nc1ude Sectiohs 15 and116 as follows:

>15. BUFFERING BETWEEN INCOMPATIBLE USES

Buffer1ng and separation between land uses of.d1ffefent dens1t1es
or 1nten51t1es of use shall be required which are suff1c1ent to
ensure compat1b111ty between uses.

Issues of compatibility shall 1nc1ude considerations for noise.
s1ght, and level of traff1c ge.nerat1on.Buffer1ng techn1ques
shall 1hc1ude:

a. Noise and s1ght 1ncompat1b111ty - screening by e1ther a 6'
sol1d phys1ca1 wall or landscape plant1ngs to reach, w1th1n
18 months, a height of at least 5 feet and an opac1ty of 80

percent.
.

b. "Traffic generat1on - based upon data taken from the ITE Trip
' Handbook Land uses with trip generat1on rates

'~greater than 50 percent of the adjacent land use shall be

Cons1dered 1ncompat1ble and shaII requ1re a 100 foot phys1-
cal separat1on between access roads (dr1veways).

c. Vegetat1ve buffer - a 25- foot vegetat1ve buffer 15 requ1red
'

between the actUaI bu11d1ng site and a water body. (See
ARTICLE VII, 15. for add1t10na1 buffer requ1rements 1n wet-

land or flood prone area.s. )



16. LE A WETLAND OR FLOOD PRONE AREA.

In all cases, where the Futuve Land Use Map deplete a 

land use overlaying a wetland or flood prone area, all 

developement must be in accord with the Wetland

Protection Ordinance and the Interim Stormwater

Management Ordinance. Development permitted in these

areas must be clustered on the upland portion of the

site. -

'

a.

'

Riverfront setback~a 25vfoot setback of.the actual 

building site from the riverfxont will be quuired 
for all new construction adjacent to the St. Johns 

Rive}.

b. s~wetland~buffer~a sowfoot buffer of vegetation,
nativ e to the site, shall be required for devel~

opments located adjacent to defined_wetland

91 Admendment tg ART. VIILk Supplementarz Regulations

ARTICLE VIII, Section I, Planned Unit Development District is

hereby amended to include subsections 6&7 to read as Tollows:

6- 12.11121;eased 9511311111. *

Requests for the permitted gross density may include 

additional density bonuses to the underlying land

uee based upon the'provision of design features of

significant public benefit. These benefits shall 

include, but not be limited to:

Benefit Bonus Incregse
Affordable Housing 0.5 percent per unit

Potable water system 8.0_percent

Sanitary sewer sys tem
1

10.0 percent

Open space (does not include golf course)
0.5 percent per acre

7. Land Use BeguiFement.
Planhed Unit-Developments may include a mix of any

combination of land uses. Application of the PUD

overlay will require a land use amendment in accor~

dance with s. 163. 3187, F. ,

10 .emendment to aRT. IX, administration g Enforcement

ARTICLE IX, Section 6 is hereby wevised to Tead:

2.-_ Building. Eermits 8eeguired

'(1) No structure or building shall hereafter be
7 erected or structurally altered until a

-building permit shall be issued by the

,Building Official, stating that he believes
'certifies that the building orFstructure

and  use of land comply with the regulations
of this



ordinance, the land use to this

in the adggted Future Land Use Man 2001 and

with all applicable buiiding and health laws and ordi-

nances.

(4) No building shall be constructed and no permit shall be
issued for any building on any premises not'

served by seWage disposai,gotab1e water, recreation-

ai, solid waste, roads or drainage facilities unless

the_proposed deveiqpment meetings the stan- '

dards prescribed by the State Health Department as v

well as the LOS stated in the City' 5 adopted Concurren-
, *

cy Management Ordinance

.ARTICLE IX, Section 6. is hereby revised to read as iOIIQWS:

6. VFees. Fees pertaining to petitions for land use amend-
, ments, zening amendments, use permits, certificates of

concurrency_L certificates of compliance, and appeals to the

,

Board of Zoning Adjustment shall be established by action of

. 

the City Commission. from time to time- Such fees
,

as designated below shaii be paid to the City Clerk at

time of aggiication.

Zoning Permit..'
......................... $10.00

Certificate_of Occupancy ................ $10.00 '

Certificate of Concurrency .............. $50.00

Appeai .................. ,, .............. $50.00

Variance.}..............................' $50.00

Speciai Exception..............;.....;.. $50.00
Planned Unit Development ................ $100.00

Land Use Change Amendment......T ........ $150.00

SECTION 11.} Severabiiity .
.

Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this
Ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and inde-

pendent provision and shall not affect the validity of the remaining
tion. ,

.

SECTION 12. Effegtive Date

This Ordinance shall take effect pursuant to general iaw upon receipt of

acknowledgement of its -fiiing in the Office of the Secretary of State,
State of Florida.



PASSEd ON THE FIRST READING,

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON THE SECOND AND FINAL READING, APRIL 13, 1993

Mayor

Council Person

Council Person

Council Person

Council Person

,

CERTIFICATION

I, ELLEN CASHWELL 
, 

TOWN CLERK, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ORDINANCE
ATTACHED HERETO IS A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF ORDINANCE 934 ADOPTED BY
THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WELAKA, FLORIDA ON APRIL 13: 1993"

f;



ARTICLE I 

ARTICLE II 

ARTICLE III 

ARTICLE IV 

ARTICLE V 

ARTICLE VI 

ARTICLE VII 

ARTICLE VIII 

,. __ ,, 

ARTICLE IX 

ARTICLE I 

73-:d ,:) 

)�c9?� 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SHORT TITLE • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  

DEFINITION OT TERMS • • • • • • • • •  

GENERAL ZONING SPECIFICATIONS • • • •  

DISTRICTS • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  

APPLICATION OF REGULATIONS • • • •  

USE PROVISIONS • •  . . . . . . . . . 

• • • 

. . . 

. . . 

S'R - lA • • •  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
S R - l • • • • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
MR - 1 • •  . . . . ·- . . . . . . . . . . 

PAGE 

1 

1 

8 

9 

9 

1• 

10 

10 

11 

G C - 1 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •• 13 

G C - 2 • • • • • • . . . . . . . . . . . . 
AG • • •  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
OFF STREET PARKING AND LOADING • •  . . . . . . 
GENERAL REGULATIONS • • • • • • • • • • • • •  

14 

16 

17 

19 

NON-st69NFORMING USES • • • • • • • • • • • • • 19 

SIGNS • • . • • . • . . • . • • •  . . . . . . 22 

SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS • • • • • • • • • • •  26 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT • • • • • • •  . . . • •  26 

SWIMMING POOLS • • • • • • • . . . . . . . . . • 30 

GASOLINE STATION REQUIREMENTS • • • • • • • • •  31 

ADMINISTRATION ANO ENFORCEMENT • • • • 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT • • • •  

. . 34 

• • • •  35 

. . . . 

. •. . . 

,:c;j.j 
u--
- --�- - - ---- - - - - - -- - - ------------ - --- - - --- -- - ---- - - -____..: ___________ _c:... _ _ ___ .� . 



ORDINANCE 83-� 

ZONING ORDINANCE 

WELAKA, FLORIDA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 69-1, OF THE TOWN OF WELAKA, FLORIDA, 
SAID ORDINANCE BEING ADOPTED JANUARY 7, 1969, BEING A COMPREHENSIVE ZONING 
REGULATION FOR THE TOWN OF WELAKA, FLORIDA, DIVIDING THE TOWN INTO DISTRICTS 
AND ESTABLISHING THE BOUNDARIES THEREOF: REGULATING AND RESTRICTING THE 
ERECTION, CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, ALTERATION, REPAIR, OR USE OF BUILDINGS 
STRUCTURES, ON LAND OR WATER: REGULATING AND RESTRICTING THE<HEIGHT, NUMBER 
OF.STORIES, AND SIZE OF BUILDINGS AND OTHER STRUCTURES: REGULATING AND RE
STRICTING THE PERCENTAGE OF LOTS THAT MAY BE OCCUPIED: REGULATING AND RESTRICT
ING THE SIZE OF YARDS, COURTS, AND OTHER OPEN SPACES: REGULATING AND RESTRICT
ING THE DENSITY OF POPULATION: REGULATING AND RESTRICTING THE LOCATION AND USE 
OF BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND LAND AND WATER FOR TRADE, INDUSTRY, RESIDENCE, 
AGRICULTURE, AND-OTHER PURPOSES: DEFINING CERTAIN TERMS HEREIN USED: PRO-. 
VIDING FOR THE ADMINISTRATION, ENFORCEMENT, AND AMENDMENT OF THIS REGULATION: 
ESTABLISHING AND DEFINING THE POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
SETTi�G A SCHEDULE OF FEES, CHARGES AND EXPENSES: SETTING PENALTIES FOR 
VIOLATION OF THESE ZONING REGULATIONS AND AUTHORIZING RESORT TO OTHER REMEDIES 
TO PREVENT OR ABATE VIOLATIONS: PROVIDING THAT THESE ZONING REGULATIONS SHALL 
SUPERSEDE ANY PREVIOUS ZONING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTIONS PROVIDING A SEPARA 
BILITY CLAUSE AUTHORITY TO CODIFY, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, The Charter of the T\llWn of Welaka, empowers the Town of Welaka, 
Florida to enact a zoning ordinance and to provide for its administration, 
enforcement and amendment; and 

WHEREAS, The Town Council of the Town of Welaka, Florida, deems it necessary 
for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals and general welfare 
of the Town, to enact said Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, pursuant to the provisions of 
general law, recommend the boundaries of the various zoning districts and 
appropriate regulations to be enforced herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Comission has given reasonable consideration 
among other things, to the character of the districts and their peculiar 
suitability for particular uses, with a view to conserving the value of 
bu.ildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the 
municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Comission has made a thorough study of this 
Ordinance and held public hearings thereon and submitted its final report 
to the Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, fti'e Town Council has given due public notice of hearings relating 
to zoniog districts, regulations and restrictions, and held such public 
hearings; and 

WHEREAS, all requirements of the Charter of the Town of Welaka have been 
comp 1i ed wi th; 

NEW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council, Town of Welaka, Florida, 
as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

SHORT TITLE 

This regulation shall be known and may be cited as "The Zoning Regulation 
of the Town of Welaka, Florida". 

ARTICLE II 

DEFINITION OF TERMS USED IN THE REGULATIONS 

For the purpose of thi.s regulation, -certain terms and words are defined as 
follows: 

J 
/ 



Definitions, cont'd 

Words used in the present tense include the future. Words in the singular 
number include the plural. Words in the plural number include the singular. 
The words "used for" shall include the meaning "designed for". The word 
"building" includes the word "structure". The word "lot" includes the 
words "plot" and "tract". The word "shall .. is mandatory and not directory. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

Accesso�? Building and Uses.An unattached subordinate building or 
the use o which is incidental to the main use of the premises. 

Access, Primary. A dedicated or recorded public road, land, place, 
alley, or easememt affording perpetual ingress and egress from a 
subject property to a public thoroughfare, and not less than twenty 

.. f,eet (20'') in width. 

Advertising structure. Any structure of any kind or character 
erected or maintained for outdoor advertising purposes, upon which 
any outdoor advertising sign may be placed. 

Alley. A public or private way which affords only secondary means 
of access to property abutting thereon. . 
Apartment HoteU A building designed for or containing both apart
ments and individual guest rooms or suites or rooms and apartments, 
and which may furnish services ordinarily furnished by hotels, such 

· as drug store, barber shop, cigar and news stands, when such uses 
are located entirely within the buildi.ng with no entrance from the 
street nor visible from any sidewalk and having no sign or display 

. visible from·the outside of the building indicating the existence 
of such use. 

Base Buildin¥ Line. A line, measured at right angles, running· 
parallel tohe centerline of the street right-of-way from which 
all front yard, street side yard, and lot requirements of this 
regulation shall.be measured. This line is the·closest point to 
the street that a structure can be located. 

Board of Adjustment. Also shall serve as Plannfog and Zoning Commission. 

Building • Any structure designed or built above or below the . 
ground for the support, enclosure, shelter or protection of persons, 
animals, chattels or property of any kind. 

Buildin
6
, Height of. The verticle distance from the grade in front 

of the uilding to the highest point of the coping of a flat roof or 
to the mean height level between eaves and ridge for gable, hip or 
gambre 1 roofs. 

Carport. A building, enclosed on two sides or less and designed for 
the parking or storage of automobiles, trucks, vans, or priva�e 
transportation vehicle. 

Child Care Center. Child care center means any service whkh during 
all or part of the day regularly gives care to six or more children, 
not of common parentage, who are under six years of age, whether or 
not it has a stated educational purpose, and whether the service is 
known as a day care service, day nursery, day care agency, nursery 
school, kindergarten, play school, progressive school or by arty other 
names. The total number of chillillren receiving care shall be counted 
including children or foster children of the owner or person in charge, 
in determining the applicability of this definition. 

A clinic is an establishment where patients, who are not lodged over
night, are admitted for examination and treatment by one physician 
·or a group of physicians practicing their professions. 

Club. Buildings and facilities towned and operated by a corporation 
or association of persons for social or recreational purposes, but 
not operated for profit or to render a service which is customarily 
carries on as a business. 

·· 

Conve�ience Retail Store. A retail store not exceeding 2400 square 
feet of gross floor space· whJ:ch provides necessary services for day
to-day operation of a household, including grocery stores, ·drug stores, 
cleaning establishments and convenience stores. 



Definitions, cont 1 d 
._f 

15. 

16. 

17. 

Coutt. An open space which may or may not have direct street access 
ana around which is arranged a single building or a group of related 
buildings. 

€everage. That percentage of the lot area covered by the main and 
accessory buildings. · 

. 
District. Any section of a certain described·area to which these 
regulations apply and within which the zoning regulations are unifonn 
and a particular classification applys. 

18. Dwelling. Any building or part thereof, occupied in whole or in part, 
• �s the residence or living quarters of one or more persons, pennanently 

or temporarily, continuously or transiently, and having cooking and 
sanitary facilities. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

26. 

27. 

Dwelling, Single Family� A building containing .only one (1) dwelling 
unit. The tenn is not to be construed as including mobile homes, 
travel trailers, housing mounted on self-propelled or drawn vehicles, 
tents, houseboats, or other fonns of temporary or portable housing. 
For the purposes of this zoning ordinance, rowhouses, townhouses, 
condominiums, cooperative apartments or any other fonn of dwelling 
units which are not in individual dijJ�eiiedt�u�fldings meeting all the 
requirements of a single dwelling s,hall not be construed to be single 
family dwellings. 

Dwelling, Multiple. A building designed for or occupied exclusively 
by three or more families, with separate housekeeping and cooking and 
sanitation facilities for each. 

Dwelling Unit. One or more rooms with principal kitchen facilities de
signed as a unit for occupancy by only one family for cooking, living 
and sleeping purposes. · 

Factory built Housina. A building confonning to the requirements of 
the City Building Co e, comprised of one or more dwelling units or 
habitable rooms which is wholly manufactured in manufacturing 
facilities and bearing the insfgnia of compliance of the State of 
Florida. 

Family. One or more persons occupying a dwelling and living as a 
single housekeepjng unit, as distinguished from persons occupying a 
boarding house, l�dging house or hotel and c011111une. 

Filling Station, See Service Station. 

Fish Camp. An establishment or premises with a waterfront location 
offering.·· food, 1 odgi ng, supp 1 i es or services for peop 1 e · engaged in 
boating, fishing or any other activity considered customary at a 
fish camp. Customary activities at a fish camp shall include the 
rental and monor repair of watercraft; the rental of cabins for a 
period of not more than thirty days, ( Including mobile homes owned 
by that fish camp and located on the premises provided that such 
rental units shall not include mobile homes in the AE District ), 
the sale of fiod in restaurant or snack bar facilities. the package 
sale of beer and wine, the rental of spaces for all types of recreational 
vehicles, with sewer and water connections, full hookups, provided a 
special exception is obtained under the·provisions of this'ordinance, 
the sale of bait, tackle, and the furnishing of fuel for watercraft. 

Frontage: 

a. Street Frontage: All the property on one side of a street 
between two intersecting streets (crossing<>r tenninating), 
or if the street is deadended, then all of theip�perty 
abutting on one side between an intersecting street .. and the 
deadend of th't� street. 
Lot frontage. The distance for which the front boundary line 
of the lot and the street frontage are coincident. 

_Dw_e;;.,.li--l_i..,_,�· ..,..---=-....... -'!· r-.rfo-Du�l-=-e.,...x,._.. A building designed for or occupied 
exc us es, with separate housekeeping and cooking 
for each. 

i:.iJ ·· i;t'.i:::1\:i;�);1�rrt-· . 

·,. · , ·<tf ;r. lv\, 

na. Two-Familv ( o ) 
1ve1y oy two \lJ ram111 



Definitioo.s, cont'd./ 

29. 

30. 

31. 

32. 

· Garage, Private.. An accessory building or a portion of a main building 
enclosed and designed for the parking or storage of automobiles of the 
occupants of the main building. A carport would not be considered 
a private garage. 

Gara9e, Storage. A building or portion thereof designed or used ex
clus1vely for the storage .or parking of automobiles. Services, other 
than storage at such storage garage shall be limited to refueling, 
lubrication, washing, waxing and polishing. 

Guest and servants quarters. Living quarters within a detached accessory 
building located on the same premises as the main·building to be 
used exclusively for housing members of the family occupying the main 

• puilding, and their non-paying guests; not to be rented or otherwise 
used as a separate dwelling. 

Home Occupation. Any occupation or activity carried on by a member of 
the family residing on the premises, in connection with which there 
is no display that will indicate from the exterior that the building 
is being utilized in part for any purpose than that Q,f a dwelling: in 
connection with which there is no construction, assembly, or activity an 
and no sign is used: there is no co11111odity sold upon the'premises, no 
person, employed other than a member of the i11111ediate familyJresiding 
on,:the premises; and no mechanical equipment is used except that wliiich 
is nonnally used for purely domestic or household purposes. The use 
of the premises by a physician, surgeon, dentist, lawyer, clergyman 
or other professional person for consultation or emergency treatment is 
pennitted, but the general practice of a profession shall,not·be 
pennitted as· a home occupation. Nursery schools ,  real estate and 
Insurance offices, barber and beauty shops are not pennitted as home 
occupations. 

Hotel. Any building containing principally sleeping rooms in which 
transient guests are lodged with or without meals, with,no provision 
made.for cooking in any individual room or suite'! Such building 
would structurally and for purposes of safety, be obliged tO·;,confonn 
to the laws of the State regulating hotels. .: · ·. >,); JL 

33. Junk Yard. An open area where waste, used or secondhand·materials 
are,bought, sold, exchanged, stored, baled, packed, ,disassembled, or 
handled, including but not limited to scrap iron and other metals, 
cloths, paper, rags, plumbing fixtures, rubber tires and bottles. A 
junk yard includes an automobile wrecking yard. 

34. Kennel and Ailimal Grooming. A f)lace where dogs, cats and other house
hold pets are kept, sheltered, groomed and boarded for compensation. 

35. Laundrl, Self-Service. A business that provhle� home ��gpe washing, 
drying, and/or ironing machines ·for hire, to be used by customers on 
the premises. 

36. Li vi ng Area. That area within any dwe 11 i ng or dwe 11 i ng unit made usab 1 e 
for human habitation with the following exceptions: 

37. 

38. 

39. 

1. loy utility room or storage space that is not within the principal 
structure. 

2. All Co11111on Corridors, hallways, or exits provided for access or 
vertical travel between stories or apartments of multiple family' 
units. 

3. Garages. 

Loadin9 Space. A space within the main building or on the same lot, 
prov1d1ng for the standing, loading or unloading of trucks. 

Lodg!ng qr Boarding House. A building other than a hotel where l�dging 
or ard1ng for three (3) but not more than twenty (20) persons 1s 
provi�ed for compensation pursuant to previous arrangemen�s. 

Lot. A parcel of land occupied or intended for occupancy by a use 
pennitted by this ordinance including one(l) main building, together 
with its clCCessory buildings, the yard areas and parking .spaces re
quired by this ordinance and having its principal frontage upon a 
legally constituted access. A "Lot of Record" i-s a part of land sub� 
division, the map of which has been recorded in the office of.the Clerk 
of the C'lrcuit CQur� of Putnam County; Florida. · · · · · · 

.. ' . . . . 
. ,1 .. . . . ' . . --7 �' 1 



definitions, cont'd� 

40. Lot, Corneft,. A lot abutting upon two (2) or more streets at their 
intersection� 

· · · · · · 

41. Lot, double fronta
3
e. A lot having a frontage on two (2) non-inter

secting streets an· distinguished from a corner lot. 

42. Lot, Depth;ea:. The depth of .a lot is the distance measured in a mean 
direction of the side lines of the lot from the midpoint of the front 
line to the midpoint of the opposite rear line of the lot. 

43. Marina. A facility for servicing, sales and rental of recreational 
watercraft including docking, launching, refueling, minor repairing 
dock storage and dry storage. A marina may include, as accessory uses, 

• a,_restaurant or snack bar, and/or motel. 

44. Mobile Home. Trailer (Mobile, House or Coach). Any unit used for 
business purpose or as an office, or for Living and sleeping purposes 
and which was originally constructed or designed as a portable structure 
or had a Motor Vehicle Title Certificate, or which is �quipped with 
wheels or similar devises used for the purpose of transporting said 
unit from place to place whether by motive power or other means, bearing 
the insignia and approval of the State of Florida. · ·  

45. Mobile Home Park. Any tract, lot or parcel of land offered by any person 
firm, partnership or corporation which has been pJ<:c1i:ul:ed'1.ilb�t:l�p:�c,�ed for 
the renting or leasing of spaces for the exclusive placement of mobile 
homes for non-transient use and where unity of title is maintained. 

46. Modular Home,. A modular home is a detached single family dwelling unit 
that cannot be moved as a single unit and must be transported in sections 
of flatbed trailers. It has the appearance of a conventional home when 
erected. A modular home contains all of the facilities usually 
associated with a conventional home including , but not limited to 
plumbing, electrical connections� flush toilets, tub or shower bath, 
and kitchen facilities and meets the requirements of the Florida Factory 
built Housing Act. 

47. Motel. A building or a group of buildings containing sleeping accomo
cations and in conjunction with which there may be a restaurant, or 
other retail uses when located on the same parcel with the main structure. 
A Motor Lodge, travel lodge or motor Inn shall be termed a motel for the 
purpose of this regulation. 

48. New Car Sales. A business where new and used cars are displayed, sold, 
and serviced and where major repair work is done including body and 
engine repair. 

49. 

50. 

Non-conforming Use. Any building or land lawfully occupied by a use 
at the time of passage of the ordinance or amendment thereto which does 
not confor.m after the passage of this ordi•nance or amendment thereto with 
the use regulations of the district in which it is situated. Existing 
improvements which do not meet required parking and loading regulations, 
b•ight regulation, area regulations, and residential floor area 
regulations for the district in which they are located are not non
conforming uses as defined above. 

Nursing and Convalescence Home. A home for the aged, chronicall y ill, 
or incurable persons,· in which three or more persons not of the 
imediate family are received, kept, or provided with food and shelter 
and care for compensation; but not including hospitals, ·clinics or 
similar institutions devoted primarily to the diagnosis and treatment 
of the sick or injured . 

51 •. Adult Congre�ate Livinv Facility. ( to diff�rentiate !rom Nursing Home) 
· Any institut1on, build1ng or bulldings, res1dence, pr1vate home, 

boarding home, home for the aged, or other place, whether operated for 
profit or not, which undertakes through its ownership or management 
to provide, for a period exceeding 24 hours, one,or more personal services 
for four or more adults, not related to the owner or administrator by 
blood or marriage, who require such services. npersonal services11 means 
services in addition housing and food service which include, but are not 
limited to: Personal assistance with bathing, dressing, ambulation, 
housekeeping, supervision, em9tional security, and any other related service 
which the department may define. Personal service does not.,include 
medical service. 



-------------- ---

52. Open Space. That portion of a building site or lot not covered by the 
structure, parking, or access roads. 

53. 

54. 

55. 

56. 

Parking Lot. An area, or plot of ground, used for the storage or 
parking of motor vehicles either for compensation or to provide an 
accessory service to a business, industrial, or residential use. 

Pet Household.Any domestic animal nonnally owned or kept as a pet 
incfud;ng cats, dogs, rabbits, parrots, pigeons, and other animals 
deemed by the Codes Administrator to be appropriate as domestic pets: 
prov+ded such animals are confined to the limits of the residential 
property occupied by the owner of such pets and do not constitute 
a public nuisance. Poultry, hoofed animals of any type, predatory 

• anjmals or any animal which is normally raised to provide food for 
people shall not normally be considered to be household pets.· 

Planned Unit Oevelopmentl A:rl development of ten acres of land or more 
by a single owner for residential, cOR111ercial, industrial, and public 
or simi-public purposes according to a specific plan of 0development 
indicating specific locations for various land uses, open space, 
community facilities and internal traffic circulation system. 

Service Station. Any building, structure, or land used for the dis
pensing, sale, or offering for sale, at retail of any automobile fuels, 
oils, or accessories and in connection with which is perfonned general 
automobile servicing as distinguished from automotive repairs. 

57. Shopping Center. A group of retail stores or serv,;ce establishments 
planned and devel�ped as a unit. · ·. · 

58. Signs . Any device or display, consisting of letters, numbers, symbols 
pictures, illustrations, announcements, cut-Outs, insignia, trade 
marks or demonstrations, including all trim and borders, designed $0 
advertis,infonn, identify, or to attract the attention of persons not 
on the premises on which the device or display is located, and visible f:,: 
from any public way. A sign shall be construed to be a single display 
surface or device containing elements organized, related and composed 
to fonn a single unit. 

59. Site Development Plan. An architectural or engineering drawing 
illustrating to scale the location of improvements on a tract of land. 
Such improvements to include street and building locations, drainage and 
utility locations, parking spaces, and other functional uses of the tract. 

60. �tory. That portion of a building included between the surface of any 
o and surface of the next floor above it, or if there be no floor above 

it, then the space between such floor and ceiling next above it. 

61 . Street. A public, or private, right-of-way which affords the principal 
means of vehicular access to abutting property. A m�jor street is priDJarily 
designed for through traffic or,inter-city traffic and·ts designated 
on the zoning map. 

62. Street Right-of Way Line. The dividing line between a lot, tract, 
or parcel of land and a contiguous street. ·•

· 

63. Structure.Anyt�ti:ng constructed or erected, the use of which requires 

more or less, pennanent location on the ground or attached to something 
having a pennanent location on the ground and shall include tents, air 
conditioners, lunch wagons, dining cars, camp cars, or other structures 
on wheels or other supports and used for business or living purposes. 

Utility poles, fences and walls used as fences shall not be considered 
as structures for setback purposes under the conditions set forth herein. 

64. Structural Alterations. Any substantial change, except for repair or 
replacement, in £he supporting members of a building, such as bearing 
walls; columns, beams or girders, floor joists QF ·roe>f joists .. / 

6)� · SwiD111ing Pool • A structure above or below ground·level �sep for,bathing 
or wading purposes and being over eighteen inches (la,) "Je'.e,tltand with a 

. surface -area of more than forty (40) square reet. ·· · 



66. Townhouses. A building that has not less than four nor more than 
eight one-family d welling units with each under single ownership 
erected in a row as a single structure on adjoining lots, each being 
separated from the adjoining unit or units by an approved party wall 
thus creating distinct and non communicating dweiling units. This 
definition shall also include 11 row house" 

67. Travel and Recreation Vehicles A vehicular, portable structure, built 
on a chassis, designed to be used as a temporary dwell ing for travel, 
recreational and vacation purposes, which : (1) is identified on the 
unit -�Y the manufacturer as a travel or camping trailer: (2) is not 
more than eight feet in body width; and (3) is of any weight provided 
its body length does not exceed thirty-five feet. 

68 . .. us�d Car Sales Lot A lot or group of contiguous lots, used for the 
display and sale of used automobil es and where no repair work is done 
except the necessary washing, polishing of the cars to be displayed and 
sold on the premises. 

69. Variance. A variance is a relaxation of the terms of the Zoning 
Ordinance where such variance will not be contrary to the public 
interest and where, owing to the conditions peculiar to the property, 

not the result of the action of the applicant, a litertl enforcement 
of the ordinance woul d result in unnecessary and undue hardship. As 
used in this ordinance, a variance is authorized only for height, area, 
and size of structure or size of structure or size of yards and open 
spaces; establishment or expansion of-a use otherwise prohibited shall 
not be all owed by a variance, nor shall a variance be granted because 
of the presence of non-conformities in the zoning district or adjoining 
zoning districts. 

70. Yard An open space at grade between a building and the adjoining lot 
lines, unoccupied and unobstructed by any portion of a structure from' 
from the ground upward. except as otherwise provided herein. In 
measuring a yard for the purpose of determining the width of a side yard 

:-,')', the depth of a front yard or the depth of a rear yard, the minimum 
horizontal distance between the lot line and the main building shall be 
used. 

71. Yard, Front, A yard extending across the front of alot between the 
side yard lines, and being the minimum horizontal distance between the 
street right-of-way line and the main building or any projections there

of other than the projections of uncovered bal conie_s or uncovered porches. 
On corner lots the front yard shall be considered as parallel to the 
street upon which the lot has its least dimension� 

72. ,Yapd,--,,,Rear • A yard extending across the rear of a lot· between the 
side lot lines and being the minimum horizontal distance between the 
rear of any building or any projections thereof. The rear lot line on 
all corner lots , the rear yard shall be at the opposite end of the lot 
from the front yard. 

73. Yard, Waterfront. A yard with one or more boundaries bordering water. 

74. Yard, Side. A yard between any building and the side line of the lot, 
and extending from the front lot line to the rear yard and being the 
minimum horizontal distance between a side lot line and the side of any 
building or any projections therefrom. 

75. Other. Uses not specifically defined by this ordinance may be added 
from time to time as needed and interpreted by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

1. 



ZONE USE 

SR 1 A 1 Family 

SR 1 1 Family 

MR 1 Multi-
Family 

T C  Tourist 
COR111ercial 

G c- l General 
G C -2 Conmercial 

AG Agriculture 

GENERAL ZONING SPECIFICATIONS 

TOWN OF WELAKA 

FLORIDA 

LOT AREA_ LOT WIDTH HEIGHT LIVING AREA DENSITY 

10,000 100 35_. - 1,300 

10,000 100 �5," 7100 3/5 acre 

20,000 200 35 400=950 3/5 acre 

10,000 35 

_J 



ARTICLE III 

DISTRICTS 

1. Establishment of Districts • . For the purpose of this regulation, the area 
of the Town of Welaka, Florida, is hereby divided into districts designated 
as follows: 

SR - lA 

� SR, - I 

MR - I 

TC 

GC - i 
GC ... 2 
AG 

Single-Family Residential Dwelling District 

Single-Family Residential Dwelling District 

Multiple - Family Residential Dwelling District 

Tourist C0111Dercial 

General COD111ercial District 

Agriculture 

2. Provision for Official Zoning Map. The boundaries and designations of the 
districts provided for herein are hereby established as shown on the map 
identified by the title "Official Zoning Map of the T<>fi''¾:tt/,�:fiikittflorida. , 
which map shall be further identified by the signatures· of the-~Mayor of the 
Town and attested by the Town Clerk, and all explanatory matter thereon 
are hereby adopted and made a part of this ordinance. Such map shall be 
filed in the office <liethe Town Clerk and shall show thereon the number of 
this ordinance and date of adoption or amendments. 

3. District Boundaries Defined. Unless otherwise specifically shown on the 
Official Zoning Mip of the Town of Welaka, the boundaries of districts are 
lot lines, the centerlines of the streets or alleys or such lines extended, 
natural boundary lines such as natural or artificial water courses, the �: 
corporate limit lines as existed at the time of enactment or amendment of 
this ordinance. 

Questions concerning the exact location of dA1strict boundary lines shall 
be decided by the Board of Zoning Adjustment constituted as provided for 
in article X hereof. 

ARTICLE IV 

APPLICATION OF REGULATIONS 

The regula�ions set by this ordinance within each district shall be minimum re� 
gulations and shall apply uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, 
except as hereinafter provided: 

1. Use. No building or structure of land shall hereafter be used or occupied 
iiicrno building or structure of part thereto shall be erected, constructed, 
reconstructed, moved or altered except in conformity with the regulations 
herein-specified for the district in which it is located. 

2. Height and Density. No building or structure shall hereafter be erect�d, 
constructed, reconstructed or altered to: 

a. exceed the height limits; 

bf· :,i:tt;�;; t,i�lttrf'J\U@llier ,e;f�f Pl}flitf!�bit·�j'Cll!l(l, c�•JJ•r 1 ot area per 

c. have a narrower or smaller front or side years than are herein required, 

3. Lot Size and Occupancy. No lot, even though it may consist of one or more 
adjacent lots in the same ownership at the time of passage of this ordinance 
shall be reduced in size so-�hat lot width or size of yards or lot area per 
family or any other requirements of this ordinance is not maintained. This 
section shall not apply when a portion of a lot ;s required for a public . 
purpose. 



4. Yards and Other sea�es. No part of a ,y�rd.or other open space or the off
street parking or loaa1ng space requtted�,about any building for the purpose 
of complying with the provisions of this ordinance shall be included as a 
part of the yard or off-street parking or loading space required for another 
building. 

5. Limitation on Number of Principal Buildings on Lots in Residential Areas. 
Except as hereinafter proviaed, only one principal resiaential building 
or group of multi-family buildings may hereafter be erected on any lot. 

6. Public Street Acee!!:_ No building shall be erected on a lot which does not 
have legal access to a public street. 

SR -IA 

1. 

SR-I 

A. 

B. 

c. 

D. 

A. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

ARTICLE V 

USE PROVISIONS 

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT - RESIDENTIAL. Within t,he SR -IA 
Single-Family Residential District as shown on the official Zoning Map 
of· the Town of Welaka, the following regulations shall apply. 

Uses Permitted. Single-Family Dwellings. 

Density'Controls. The following yard, density and heights of building 
requirements shall be observed except as provided in Article VIII. 

1. Minimum required lot area: 10,000 square feet 

2. Minimum required lot widtft: 100 feet 

3. Minimum required front yard: 25 feet 

4. Minimum required rear yard: 20 feet 

5. Minimum required side yard: 10 feet or 10% of the width 
whichever is ,�eater. 

6. Minimum required from waterfront. 25 feet 

7. Minimum living area: 1,:300 square feet 

8. Maximum lot coverage: 35 percent 

9. Maximum structure heights: 35 feet 

Off-Stteet Parking.Required off-street parking spaces shall be 
providea as set forth in Article VI hereof. 

Mobile Homes. No Mobile Homes shall be permitted in this district. 

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DWELLING DISTRICT. Within an SR-I Single
Family Residential Distrlct as shown on the Officia1 Zoning Map of the 
Jown of Welaka, the following regulations shall apply: 

Uses Permitted. Single-Family Dwellings. 

Conditional uses 'ermitted. When, after a review of an application, 
The Planning andoning Comission finds as a fact that the proposed use 
is consistent with the General Development Plan of the Town of Welaka, 
the following uses may be permitted: 

Farming not involved with livestock. 

Playgrounds 

Golf Courses 

Family Disaster Shelters 



C. 

D. 

E. 

5. Recreation Areas 

6. Public Utility Structures 

7. Churches 

8. Public and Private schools 

9. Libraries 

10. Hospitals 

11. Sanatoriums 

" 12. Institutions of public interest type 

13. C011111Unity Disaster Shelters 

14. Home Occupations 

15. Nursing or convalescent homes. 

Density Controls. The Followi'ng yard, density and height of buflding re= 
quirements shall be ob$erved except as provided in Article VIII. 

1. Minimum required lot area: 10,000 square feet 

2. Minimum required lot width: 100 feet 

3. Minimum required f1Wnt yard� 25 feet 

4. Minimum required rear yard: 20 feet 

5. Minimum required side yard: 7. 5 feet 

6. Minimum required living area: . ioo square feet 

7. Maximum lot coverage: 40 percent 

8. Maximum structure height: 35 fee-t 

Off-street harking. Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided 
as set fort in Article VI hereof. 

Mobile Homes Mobile Homes shall be pennitted in this district, and must be 
suitably skirted all around base; must be tied down and connected to approved 
sanitary and utility systems in accordance with applicable laws and regulation. 

MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DWELLING DISTRICT� Within� an MR-I Multiple
Family Residential Dwelling District as shown on the Official Zoning 
Map of the Town of Welaka; the following regulations shall apply: 

A. Uses pennitted. Land and structures shall be used enly for the 
following purposes: 

1. Single family dwellings 

2. Duplexes and townhouses 

3. Multiple family dwellings 

B. Conditional Uses Pennitted. Then, after review of an application and plans 
apputtenant thereto, the Planning and Zoning Commission finds as a fact 
that the following proposed use or uses are consistent with the general 
zoning and other appurtenant municipal ordinances and with the public 
interest, the Planning and Zoning Commission is hereby authorized to 
approve special pennits for the following uses as pennitted uses in 
the MR .- 1 District. 

l�, See Article v.,,, (SR -1, Section B. 

J 



Conditional Uses Pennitted 

2. Cemeteries 

C. Approval of Site Development Plan 

D. 

� .• No building or struc ture, or part thereof, shall be erected, altered 
or-used, or land or water used nor shall any building pennit or 
or certificate of occupancy be issued therefor, unless and until a Site 
Development Plan for such building, structure or use shall have been 
approved as provided '�herein. 

Density Controls. The following yard, density, and height of buildings 
requirements shall be observed except as proveded in Article VIII • 

. 

i� For single family dwellings, the Density Controls in the SR-1 Single 
family Residential Dwelling District shall be applicable. 

2. For Two-family dwellings: 

a. Min�mum required lot area 

b. MindlJnum required lot width: 

c. Miriimun.t required front yard: 

d. f!1i11,imum required rear yard: · 

e. Minimum required side yard: 

f. Minimum required from waterfront 

g. Minimum required living area: 

h. Maximum lot coverage: 

I. Maximum structure height 

3. For Multiple-family dwellings: 

10,000 square feet 

100 feet 

25 feet 

20 feet 

7.5 or 10% 

25 feet 

700 �q. ft. per family 

35 percent 

35 feet 

a. Minimum required lot area shall be 20,000 sq.aare feet for the 
first two dwelling units and 5,000 square feet for each additional 
unit that is added. 

b. Minimum required lot width: 

c. Minimum front yard: 

200 ft. 

30 feet 

d. Minimum required rear yard shall be 20 feet for the first two 
stories. For each story in excess of two the required rear yards 
shall be increased by five (5) feet for each story so added. 

e. Minimum required side yard on each side of the structure shall not 
be less than 10 feet for the first story and 20 feet for a two story 
structure. For each story in excess of 2, the required side yard 
sha 11 be i nareased by 5 feet for each stQry so added. 

it Minimum required li vi nd area: 

aa. Efficiency apartment 
bb. one bedroom apartment 
CC-f;. two bedroom apartment 
dd. Three or more bednn apartment 

g. Maximum lot coverage: 

400 sq. ft. 
700 sq. ft. 
800 sq. ft. 
950 sq. ft. 

40 percent 

h. Minimum open space required exclusive of parking area: 30% of site area. 

i. Maximum structure height: -35 feet 

E. Off-Street Parking 
Required off-street parking spaces shall be proveded as set forth in 
Article VI hereof. 

F. Mobile Homes: No Mobile Homes shall be pennitted in this District. 

= 



4. GENERAL COMMERCIAL C-1 

Zoning map to be changed to show commercial areas as: 

C-1 200 feet on east side of SR-309 from northern city limits to 
Aquarium, excepting the two blocks zoned C-2. 

200 feet on west side of SR-309 from northern city limits to 
McClure Street, excepting the two blocks zoned C-2. 

200 feet on either side of Elm Street from St. Johns River to 
eastern city limits, excepting four blocks at intersection of 
Elm Street and Third Avenue (SR-309) zoned C-2 • 

• C�2 Entire four blocks at intersection of Elm Street and third 
Avenue (SR-309). 

(Note: If residents in the area of Seventh Avenue and Elm Street 
wish to incorporate a C-2 zone in that area, the Planning 
Commission is agreeable). 

C-1 USES PERMITTED. 

Land and structures shall be used only for the following 
purposes: 

1. Single family dwelling 

2. Multiple family residential uses conforming to the requirements 
of the MR-1 district . 

3. Art Museums 

4. Bakeries where all goods are sold on the premises at eetail. 

5. Drug Stores 

6. Electrical appliance sale and repair 

7. Florist shops and greenhouses for retail trade only. 

8. Funeral homes 

9. Grocery, fruit or 9egetable stores. 

10. Hotels and motels 

11. Indoor theaters and auditoriums 

12. Laundromats and launderettes 

13. Meat markets and poultry stores if no slaughter or stripping invol ved. 

14. Municipal buildings including city hall, libraries and fire stations 
excluding garages, maintenance shops , jails and correctional 
institutions. 

15. Oft.tees 

16. Photographers' or artists' studios. 

17. Professional offices 

18. Radio and television sales and services shops. 

19. Radio and televisions broadcasting studios 

20. Signs conforming to the requirements of the Town' s sign Ordinance. 

21. Tailor and dressmaking shops. 

22. Telephone exchange buildings 

13 

-- --- -------- -----



C-1, Uses permitted, cont'd. 

23. Temporary building incidental only to construction of a permitted use. 

24. Restaurants, except drive-in and fast food restaurants. 

DONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED: 

When after review of an application and plan appurtenant thereto, the Planning 
and Zoning Conmission finds as a fact that the following proposed use or uses 
are consistent with the general zoning and other appurtenant municipal 
Ordinances and with the;jb,blis interest, the Planning and Zoning Conmission 
is hereby authorized to approve special permits for the following uses as 
permitted in the C-1 District: 

1. Shopping Centers 

2. Banks 

C-2 USES PERMITTED 

Land and structures shall be used only for the following purposes: 

1. Athletic Clubs and health studios .  

2. Self-service and coin operated car wash establishments where no 
gasoline or service is provided. 

3. Bowling alleys' 

4. Business, music, dance, or comercial schools. 

5. Dry cleaning plants only using automatic s,elf-contained cleaning 
machines with a capacity of 40 pounds or less per load and using 

nnon-inflamable toxic dry cleaning solvents. 

6. Pet shops or animal hospitals when conducted wholly within the 
enclosed building, provided no boarding facilities are provided. 

7. Drive-in and fast food restaurants. 

8. Retail sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption off the premises. 

9. Any uses permitted in C-1 zone. 

CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED IN C-2: 

, When, after review of an application and plan appurtenant thereto, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission finds as a fact that the following proposed 
use or uses are consistent with the general zoning and other appurtenant 
municipal ordinances and with the public interest, the Planning and 
Zoning COD111ission is hereby authorized to approve special permits for 
the following uses as permitted uses in the C-2 District. 

1. Gasoline service stations 

2. Automotive, new and used, sales and service 

3. Drive-in Theaters. 

4. Automotive body, repair and paint shops. 

5. Sale of Alcoholic� beverages for consumption on the premises. 

C. Approval of Development Plan 
No building or structure, or part thereof, shall be erected, altered 
or used, or land or water used no shall any building pennit or certificate 
of occupancy be issued therefore, unless a development Plan for such 
building, structure or use shall have been approved as provided herein.' 



D. Density Controls 

1 .  

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

The following yard, density and height of building requirements 
shall be observed. 

Minimum required lot area: 1 0,000 feet 

Minimum required lot width: None 

Minimum required front yard: 25 feet 

Minimum required rear yard: 1 5  feet 

Minimum required si de yard: 1 0  feet 

Maximum lot coverage: 50 percent 

Maximum structure lleight 35 feet with 
sprinkler system 

I. Off-Street Parking 

Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided as set forth 
in Section VI hereof. 

F. Mobile Homes 

Mobile homes shall be permitted in  this �ftistri ct. 



TC Tourist C011111ercial 

AG 

A, ��r� .e$P!l}}!d� ��nd �nd �;ruc�ur�� sh�ll b,� U$�d f�r �h� f�l l �win� 
- • . • . � - - - - - - - - purposes .  , _ , . 

1 .  Fish camps and marinas 
2. Motels and Hotels 
3. Restaurants, including drive-in restaurant. 
4 .  Gift, novelty and curio shops and simiilrar. uses. 

catering to tourist trade. 
5. Travel trailer parks and camp grounds. 

B. Conditional Uses Permitted. 
• , .. 1 .  Any retail ·or service use which can be shown to be primarily service 

oriented to automobile uses, tourist accommodations and supporting 
facilities. 

2. An establishment of facility for the retail sal� and service of all 
alcoholice beferages for consumption either on-premises or off-premises 
or both. 

3. Mobile home for the occupancy of the owner or employee of pennitted 
principal use. 

C. Accessory Uses and Structures Pe"'1itted. _ On the same premises and in 
connection with ,pennittea uses ana structures, a single-family dwelling 
unit for 0ccupancy by an owner or employee thereof. Said single family 
dwelling Utlit may be attached or detached from the principal pennitted use. 

D. Density Controls. The following yard, density and '1.eight of building 
requirements shal l be observed: 

1 .  Minimum required lot area 10,000 square feet 
;_.,_s : 

2. Minimum required lot width 100 feet 

3. Minimum required front yard 50 feet 

4. Minimum required rear yard 15 feet 

5. Minimum required side yard 15 feet 

6. Maximum lot coverage 50 percent 

7. Maximum stru�ture height 35 feet 

E. Off Street Parking. Required off-street parking spaces shall be provided 
as set forth in st!ction IV, hereof. 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT. This district is intended to apply ·to areas which 
are sparsely developed. It includes uses nonnally found in rural areas away 
from urban activity. \ It is intended that substantial residential , c011111ercial, 
or industrial development shall not be pennit,ted in the AG district, but lands 
in such district may be rezoned to the proper district to accommodate such 
uses when conditions warrant rezoning. 

A. Pennitted Uses and Structures. 

a. Agricultural, horticultural and forestry uses, including the keeping 
and raising of fann animals and poultry. 

b. Single-family residences. 

c. Roadside stands where the major portion of l)roducts offif�d, for sale 
is grown on the premises. 

- -------- - -- -- ---·------- ---- -- - - ---- - -------------- -- -�-�- ----------' 



AG Pennitted Uses, -'Cont• d. 

d. Dude ranch, riding academy, or public stable, day camps, private camps, 
(including church camps), country clubs, private clubs , golf courses, 
parks, camping grounds and recreational areas, playgrounds, playfields 
and government structures., 

e. Game preserves, wil dli fe management areas, fish hatcheries and refuges, 
water reservoirs, control structures and wells. 

f. Churches, monasteries, convents, temporary revival establishments, 
cemeteries, columbariums and mausoleums • . 

g. Schools, colleges, and universities with conventional academic curricula. 

" h.. .Airports 

I. Home occupations, day nurseries and kindergartens. 

Pennissible Uses by Special Exception. 

a. Sawmills, borrow pits, rail road yards. 

b. Radio or television broadcasting offices, studios, transmitters, antennas, 
line-of-sight relay devices. 

c. Garbage dumps and sanitary landfills, provided state and county health 
requirements are met. 

d. Race tracks for vehicles or animals. 

e. Animal hospitals, veterinary clinics, animal boarding places, fur fanns, 
dog kennels, provided no structure for the housing of animals shall be 
located within 200 feet of any residence of different ownership. 

ARTICLE VI 

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 

The following off-street parking spaces shall be provided and satisfactorily main- · 
tained by the owner of the property for each building use. 

1. DEFINITION OF OFF STREET PARKI'NG AND LOADING SPACE. 
For the purpose of tMs regulation, the tenn "off-street parking space11 

shall consist of a minimum net area of two. httndred ( 200) square feet, 
exclusive of access drives and aisles, of appropriate dimensions for the 
parking of an automobile and an 11off-street loading space shall consist 
of a minimum net area of five hundred ( 500) square feet, exclusive of 
access drives and aisles . "� e; · : "'-'. .  Paving shall be required for conmercial 
only, except churches and Women' s Club. All required off-street parking 
facilities shall be drained so as not to cause any nuisance to adjacent 
private or public property. A certificate of Compliance for the given 
structure ot premises shall be prohirbited until the required parking 
area has been improved, inspected, and approved. 

2. OFF STREET PARKING REQ.UIREMENTS. There shall be provided; at the time 
of the erection of any main building or structure, or at the time any 
main building or structure i s  enlarged or increases in capacity by adding 
dwelling units, guest rooms, floor area or seats; minimum ·off-street 
automobile parking space with adequate provisions for ingress, and egress 
by an automobile of standard size in accordance with tbe .,following requirements 

L ·. SinTle Famil{ Dwelling Structures: a mi;nimum of two spaces for eatb, 
dwe ling uni • 

2. Multiple family dwelling structures¼ Two spaces for each dwelling unit 
plus adequate storage space for boats and accessory vehicles. 

3. Churches, temples, or places of worship: one- space for each four seats 
in the main auditorium. 

4. Comercjal , manyfac;;tyrin¥, and �ndustrial concerns not cateri n9 to.the 
retail . trade: _on� .space ��qr . eac� � two .emplo,Y..ees ·_on :the •. lar.ge�t �worklng : .  
�fiiJ( t _pl.us �Qne space for, each company veh1.cle operat1ng frQm the · prem1 ses. 

,, ": 

/,l, ' 



5. Country, golf, gun club: one space for each five members. 

I. General bu 
one space 
floor area. 

sonal serv ablishments: 
O square non-storage 

7. Hotels: One space for each two bedrooms plus one additional space 
for each two employees. 

8. Hospitals, sanitariums6 convalescent, and nursing homes: one space 
for each four pat;en£ eds, one space for each two staff doctors and 
one space for each two employees on the largest shift. 

9. Kennels and animal hospitals: a parking area equal to thirty percent of 
the .total enclosed or covered area, plus one space for each two employees. 

10. Libraries , museums: a parking area equal to Xf'tft.v percent of the 
floor area open to the public. 

11. Medical or dental offices or clinics: six spaces for each doctor or 
dentist plus one space for each two additional employees. 

12. Motels: one space for each guest bedroom, plus one space for resident 
manager or owner. 

13. Office and public buildings: seven spaces for each 1, 000 square feet 
of floor area used for office purposes. 

14. Private club or lodge: one space for each five members. 

15. Restaurants of other eating and drinking places: a minimum of ten 
spaces plus one space for each 100 square feet of floor area devoted 
to patron use, plus one space for each two employees on the largest shift. 

16. Room, boarding houses: one space for each living unit. 

17. Schools: one space for two employees plus one space for each three 
students of driving age. 

18. Sho�ping centers and super markets: ten spaces for each 1,000 square 
fee ot retail floor area. 

19. Theatres, auditoriums, places of assembly: one space for each four seats. 

20. Bowling alleys: five spaces for each bowling lane 

21. Student housin9: one space ·for every two sleeping accoD111odations for 
students of dr1 ving age. 

22. Mixed uses: i n  the case of mixed uses, the total requirements for off
street parking shall be the sum - of the requirements of lhe varfaus 
uses computed separately and off-street parking space for one use shall 
not be considered as providing the required off-street parking for any 
other use; except that in the case that mixed users are not operated or 
patronized at the s.ame time such users may utilize each othe.rs parking 
spaces upon obtaining approval of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

23. All other uses: parking requirements for uses not listed in this section 
shall be detennined by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

i. LOCATION OF OFF-&JREET PARKING SPACES. 

!., Parking spaces for all dwellings shall be located on the same plot or 
adjacent to the main building to be served. 

2. Parking spaces for other uses shall be provided on the same lot or not 
more than five hundred (500) feet distant, as measured along the nearest 
pedestrian walkway. 

3. Parking requirements for two o� more uses, of the same or different 
types, may be satisfied by the allocation of the required number of 
sp,ces of each use in a coD111on parking facility. 

siness. conmercial or per ice est 
for each two hundred) 20) feet of 

--------------------� - ... I 



4. OFF-STREET LOADING REQUIREMENTS The following spaces shall be 
provided for the uses indicated. 

5. 

6. 

1 .  Every hospital, institution , hotel, c011111ercial or industrial 
building or similar use, requiring the receipt or distribution by 
vehicle of materials or merchandise, shall have sufficient pennanently 
maintained off-street loading space so as not to hinder th• freemovement 
of vehicles and pedestrians over the street or sidewalk. 

2. All structures requiring the pick-up of large quantities of garbage or 
trash shall provide an easily accessible area of the pick-up and 
delivery of a dumpster or other trash receptacle. 

PERMANENT RESERVATION Area reserved for off-street parking or loading, in • , accordance with the requirements of this section, shall not be reduced 
in area or changed to any other use unless the pennitted use which it 
serves is discontinued or modified: except, where equivalent parking 
or loading is provided to the satisfaction of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

RESTRICTIONS ON PARKING OF CERTAIN VEHICLESCertain vehicles subject to the 
following license classifications, as set out by the Florida Dept. of 
Transportation , shall not be parked in off-street parking areas, access 

to highways thereto, or on any residential district except as may be 
required for service at dwellings, or at structures or activities pennitted 
or pennissible in such residential districts by the terms of this Zoning 
regulation. 

CV Series 

GW Series 

K Series 

S Series 

P. Series 

(Tractors and Trucks for Commercial use over 5,000 pounds)' 

(Motor vehicles , trailers and semi-trailers equipped with 
machinery and designed for exclusive use in the nature of 
well drilling , excavation , construction, spraying and 
like purposes.) 

(School buses, conmercial wreckers, hearses, excepting 
ambulances.) 

(Nine persons and over passenger vehicles) 

(Trucks used for agricultural purposes). 

ARTICLE VII 

GENERAL REGULATION PROVISIONS 

1 .  NON-CONFORMING USES OF STRUCTURES ANO LAND WITHIN THE DISTRICT. 

Existing lots , structures and uses of land and structures which were lawful 
before this regulation was passed or amended, but which are prohibited, re
gulated or restricted under the terms of this regulation or future amendment, 
are permitted- to continue until they are removed. Such uses are declared by 
this ordinance to be incompatible with permitted uses in the districts involved. 
It is further the intent of this ordinance that confonnities shall not be 
enlarged upon, expanded or extended, nor be used as . grounds for adding other 
structures or uses prohibited elsewhere in the same district. 

A non-conforming use of a structure, a non-conforming use of land, or a non
conforming use of a structure add land shall not be extended or enlarged 
after passage of this ordinance by attachment on a building or premises of 
additional signs or by addition of other uses of a nature which would be 
prohibited in the district involved. 

l . Non-conforming lots of record. 

· · Where a lot of;,.record exists which was pJatted and recorded in the Office 
. of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Putnam County prior to the time of 
adtlption of this regulation, and said lot does rtot donform to the lot area 

.. . or width requirements for the district in which- it is located, sil:d lot 
' may be used for any use pennitted , in district provided all other density 

control requirements are met. 

I 9, 



� ·  

NON-CONFORMING USES OF LAND 

Non-conforming properties shall be allowed to continue in their present 
usage at the time of Council's acceptance of this ordinance until one 
of the following conditions occur: 

1 .  Property changes ownership 

2. Destruction of 50 percent or more by fire or natural disaster. 

3. Renovation or additions of more than 50 percent to existing structures. 

If any of the above events occur, use of property shall be governed by 
provisions of current zoning ordinance. 

3. NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURES 

j) 
4. 

Where a lawful structure exists at the effective date of adoption or 
amendment of this regulation that could not be built under the terms of 
this regulation bJ restriction on area, lot coverage, height, yards, or 
other characteristics of the structure or its location on the lot, such 
structure may be continued so long as it remains otherwise lawful, subject 
to the following provisions: 

a. , Such structure shall not be enlarged or altered in a way which 
increases it's non-conformity. 

b. Should such structure be destroyed by any means to an extent of sixty 
percent or , more it its tax assessed value at time of destruction, it shall 
not be reconstructed exeept in conformity with the provisions of this 
regulation. 

c. Should such structure be moved for any reason for any distance whatever, 
it shall thereafter conform to the regulations for the district in 
which it is located after it is moved. 

NON-CONFORMING USES OF STRUCTURES. 

If a lawful use of a structure, or of structure and premises in combination, 
exists at the effective date of adopting or amendment of this regulation, 
that would not be allowed in the district under the terms of the regulation, 
the lawful use may be continued so long as it remains otherwise lawful, 
subject to the following provisions : 

a. No existing structure devoted to a ase not permitted by this regulation 
in the district in which it is located shall be enlarged, extended, 
constructed, reconstructed, moved, or structurally altered except . in 
changing the use of the structure to a use permitted in the district 
in which it is located. 

b. Any structure, or structure and land in combination, in or on which a 
a non-conforming use is superseded by a permitted use, shall thereafter 

conform to the regulation for the district in which such structure is located, 
and the non-conforming use may not thereafter be resumed. 

c. lhen a non-conforming use of a structure, or structure and premises 
in combination, is discontinued or abandoned for six months, the 

stroature or structure and premises in combination, shall not thereafter 
be used except in conformance with the regulations of the district in 
which it is located. 

d. Where non-conforming uses status applies to a structure and premises 
in combination, removal or destruction of the structure shall eliminate 

t the non-conforming status of the land. 

5. 

/ 
v 
I 

6. 

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. Nothing in this regulation shall be deemed to 
prevent the strengthening or restoring to a safe condition of any building 
or part thereof except as provided in (3) B. above� 

-
LOCATION OF ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND USES When an accessory building is attached 
to a main structure oy a 6reezeway, passage or otherwise, it shall maintain 
the same yard requirements of the main building. 

J. D  



3. 

4. 

,· 

2. A detached accessory building sh.all not be closer th.an $1.X feet to ' the 
main building or other accessory building on the same lot and ' shall not 
be closer than four feet to the side and rear lot lines. 

3. No detached accessory building or use shall be located in the required 
front yard or side yard when that side yard is adjacent to a street. 

DISASTER SHELTERS 

[. Disaster shelters for unHmited occupancy are pennitted as a principal 
or accessory structure in any business or industrial district. 

2. Fallout shelters operated by a local, state or Federal governmental agency 
may be located in any district. 

a. , Above ground shelters intended for occupancy by not more than two families is pennitted in any district as an accessory structure subject to the req 
quirements of Section 2 hereof. 

4. Underground shelters intended for occupancy by more than two families is 
pennitted at any location in any yard notwithstanding other provisions of 
this ordinance provided the structure or its over burden does 0not exceed 
thirty inches above the oatural grade of the yard. 

5. Disaster shelters intended for occupancy by more than two families may 
be pennitted as Conditional Uses in accordance with Section 3 hereof, in 
cases where such use would not be damaging or injurious to surrounding 
land use. 

6. Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to prohibit the multiple 
use of a di'saster shelter with other pennitted uses of the district in 
which it is located. 

YARDS 

1. Projecting architectural features. The space in any required yard shall be 
open and unobstructed except for the ordinary projections of window sills, 
belt courses, cornices, eaves, and other architectural features provided 
that such features shall not project more than three feet into any required 
yard. 

2. Porches Any porch or carport having a roof shall be considered a part of 
the building for the detennination of the size of yard or lot coverage. 

3. Terraces. A paved terrace shall not be considered in the detennination of 
yard sizes or lot coverage provided .that such terrace is unroofed. Such 
terrace, however, shall not project into any yard to a point closer than 
two feet from the lot line. 

4. Front yards. Front yards required in business districts may contain pump 
islands of service stations provided such pump islands are a minimum of 20 
feet from all front property lines. 

5. Rear yards. Rear yards may contain accessory buildings provided such buildings 
comply with Section 2 hereof. 

6. Corner lots. Corner lots in residence districts have two front yards. 
Houses whose fronts are oriented parallel to a street shall maintain re
quired front yard on such street. The front yard on the remaining street 
may be ten feet less than the nonnal front yard required provided it is not 
less than fifteen feet to the nearest point on the street line. 

7. Water Front Lots. Water front lots structures must be at least 25 feet 
from the mean high water line. 

5. HEIGHT M0DIRICATI0N 

t . .  The height limitations of this regulation shall not apply to church spires, 
hams, silos, monuments, missiles, flag poles, · antennae, and . domes not used 
for human occupancy, nor to chimneys, water tanks, and necessary mechanical 
appurtenances usually carried above the roof level. Such features, however, 
shall be erected only to such height as is necessary to accomplish the 
purpose they are to serve and shall not excee� in cross-sectional area 
20 percent of �he ground flQor area of th.e bu1lding. 

� ' . . ..,, ' . � 



6. 

7. 

. ,-� �-
2. Obstruction t king and liShtins.All obstruct s as defined by the Civil 

Aeronautics 13oard publication " bstruction Marking and L igh.tingu shall be 
marked and lighted as specified by said publication at the owner1 s expense. 

CORNER VISIBILITY. On a corner lot in any residence district no fence, wall 
hedge, structure, or planting, or other obstruction to vision between the 
heights of two and one half feet and fifteen feet above street level shall 
be erected, placed, or maintained within the triangular area formed by the 
intersection street lines and a straight line joining said street lines at 
points which are thirty feet distant from the point of intersection measured 
along said street lines. 

BUFFER AREAS. Whenever a commercial or multiple family use abuts a re
sidentially zoned area, the conmercial use or multiple family use shall 
provide and maintain an appropriate sight proof fence for noise and 
objectionable uses and conditions. 
� -

8. CURB BREAKS. The number of curb breaks for all comercial and industrial 
uses shall not exceed one for each 100 feet of street frontage, or fraction 
thereof each having a maximum width of not more than 50 feet and located 
not closer than 20 feet to the street right of way intersection. Two curb 
breaks along the same street shall be separated by a minimum of J O  feet 
and no curb breaks shall be located between the point of tangent on the curve 
of an intersection. 

9. NEW AND USED CAR AND BOAT SALES LOT. 

1. All parking area for display and sale shall be provided with a pavement 
having an asphaltic1: or portland cement binder and shall be so graded 
and drained as to dispose of all surface water accumulation. 

2.  Turnouts 'shall be as required to insure safe ingress and egress. 

3. All structures shall meet the setback requirements of the district 
in which located. 

4. Vehicles for display and sale shall maintain the setbacks established 
for structures in the district in which located. 

10. UTILITY POLES, FENCES AND WALLS USED AS FENCES. 

1. Utility poles as required by Public Utility Companies shall not be required 
to meet the setback requirements for structures. 

2. 6n residentially zoned property, fences and walls used as fences be erected 
or maintained along or adjacent to a lot line to a height not exceeding 
six feet, provided such fences or walls comply with regulations set 
forth in Section 6 of this Article. 

11. ESSENTIAL SERVICES. Essential services are permitted in any zoning district. 
Essential services are hereby defined as and are limited to certain installation 
of water, sewer, gas, telephone or electrical systems such as substations, 
and similar installations; provided, however, ( 1 ) that this subsection shall 
not be deemed to permit the location in a district of' such installations as• 
electric or gas generating plants, sewage treatment plants, water pumping or 
aeration facilities from which they would otherwise be prohibited, unless 
such facilities serve a subdivision recorded before the . effective date of 
this Zoning Regulation, or intended to serve a subdivision approved under 
subdivision regulations in effect after the effective date of this Zoning 
Regulation, or a part of an internal package system designed and intended 

· .  tci;;;�rve��,'�tio,g]tf JnE!uitJ'k�l,,ot.t,CQlffll81:'C;j:Alt'$USe of comp 1 ex; 
(2) that this sub-section shall not be deemed to permit the erection of 
structures for conmercial activities such as sales of related merchandise or 
collection of bills in districts from which such activities would otherwise 
be prohibited. 
SIGNS 

12. The purpose of this section is to promote and protect the public health, 
welfare and safety by regulating existing and proposed outdoor advertising, 
outdoor advertising signs and outdoor signs of all types. It is intended to 
pootect property values, create a more attractive economic and business 
climate, enhance and protect the physical �ppearance of the conmunity and 
preserve the scenic and natural beauty of designated areas. It is further 
intended to reduce sign or advertising distraction and obstructions that 
may contribute to traffic accidents, to reduce hazards that may be caused 
by signs overhanging or projecting over public c•.�ights8of-way, to pr,-<ivJde0 

more open space, to curb the deterioration of the natural env-ironment and 
to enhance conmunity development. 



- ---1 

Signs, cont' d 

a. Conttruction Requirements. 

All signs of simil ar advertising �tter shall be governed in their 
construction or erection and maintenance by applicable local codes, 
and no sign or similar . advertising media shall be erected without a 
permit. 

b. Governmental Signs Excluded 

For the purpose of these regulations "sign" does not include signs 
erected and maintained pursuant to and in - discharge of any Govern-

• ment function, or required by any law, ordinance or governmental 
regulation . 

c. General Requirements for all signs add districts. 

The regulations contained in this section shall apply to all si�ns 
and all use districts: 

1.  Any illuminated sign or lighting J:levice shall employ only 1 ight 
emitting a light of constant intensity, and no sign shall be 
illuminated by or contain flashing, intermittent, rotating or moving 
lights. Iq,,nq event shall an illuminated sign or lighting device 
be pl�ed _io

_
r d'i re�ted so as to permit the beams and ill umination 

therefhqJ ·tQ, be d1 rected or .beamed upon a public thoroughfare, 
highway, sidewalk or adjacent premises, so as to cause glare 
or refl ection that may constitute a traffic hazard or nuisance. 

2. No sign shall employ any parts of elements which revolve, rotate, 
whirl, spin or otherwise make use of motion to attract attention. 
Subsections ( 1 )  and (2) of this section shall not apply to any 
sign performing a public service function indicating time, temper
ature, stock market quotations or similar services. 

3 .  All wiring, fittings and materials used in the construction, 
connection and operation of electrically illuminated sign shall be 
in accordance with the provisions of the local electric code in 
effect. 

4. No projecting sign shall be erected or maintained fr�m the front 
or face of a building a distance of more than two (2J feet, in
cluding those projecting from the face of any theater, hotel or 
motel marqu�e. 

5. No sign shall be placed on the roof of any building, except those 
signs whose supporting structure is screened so the sign appea,rs 
to be a continuation of the face of the building. 

6. No temporary sign shall be placed on the front or face of a 
building or on any premises, except as expressly provided in this 
code. 

7. No sign or part thereof shall contain or consist of banners, posters 
pennants, ribbons, streamers, spinners or other similar moving 
devices. Such devices, as well as strings of lights, shall not be 
used for the purpose of advertising or attracting attention. 

8. No sign erected or maintained in the window of a building, visible 
from any public or private street or highway, shall occupy more 
than 20 percent of the window surface. 

9. No sign of any classification shall be install ed, erected or 
attached in any form, shape or manner to a fire es-cape or any door 
or win�ow giving access to any fire escape. 

10 . All signs hung and erected shall be plainly marked with the name ·of 
the person ,fci:l"lll:, or�1corporation responsible· for maintaining the sign. 

• - •. 
-
_ c;• - . �, __ , .. .  - • 

11. Should any sign be or become unsafe or be in danger of falling, the 
.owner thereof or the person maintaining the same shall, upon receipt 
of written notice from the Zoning Administrator, proceed at once to 
put - such sign in a safe and secure condition or remove the sign. 

;�: :;·; . .  

u---------- - -- --- --- - ------ - - - - - -- - - -------------� -



Signs 

12. No sign shall be placed in any public right-of-way, except publicly 
owned signs, such as traffic control signs and directional signs. 
Signs directing and guiding traffic and parking or indicating 
private, but bearing no advertising mg"tter, shall be pennitted on 
any property. ·• 

D. Measurement of Sign Area 

The surface area of a sign shall be computed as including the entire 
area within a regular, geometric fonn or combinations of regul ar, 
geometric fonns comprising all of the display area of the sign and 
including all of the elements of the matter displayed. Frames and 
structural ■embers not being advertising matter shall not be in-

• , . eluded in computation of surface area. 

e. Signs Pennitted in All Districts and not requiring a Pennit . 

1. Signs advertising the sale, lease or rental of the premises upon 
which the sign is located, not exceeding 12 square feet in area, 
except in all residential districts, the area of the sign shall 
not be more than six (6) square feet. 

2. Professional name plates not exceeding four square feet in area. 

3. Signs denoting the name and address of the occupants of the 
premises, not exceeding 2 square feet. in area. 

f. Signs pennitted in Any District But Reqiiiring Penni ts 

1. Signs or bulletin boards, customarily incidental to places of 
worship, libraries, museums, social clubs or societies, located 
on the premises of such instution, not exceeding fifteen (15) sq. 
feet in area. 

2. Any sign advertising a commercial enterprise, including real 
estate developers or subdividers, in a district xoned residential 

not to exceed twel ve square feet in area and advertising only the names 
of the owners, trade names, products sold and/or the business 
or activity conducted on the premises where such sign is located. 

g. Signs Pennitted in Commercial and Manufacturing Districts requiring 
a pennit. 

h. 

The regulation set forth in this section shall apply to signs in all 
commercial and manufacturing districts, and sueh signs shall require a 
pennit. 

1. In a commercial or manufacturing district, each business shall be 
pennitted one flat or wall, on-premises sign. Projection of wall 
signs shall not exceed two feet, measured from the face of the .. , 
main building. Permanent on-premises signs for any single bustliess 
enterprise may have an area · equivalent to one and one-half square 
feet of sign area for each lineal foot of building width or part 
of a building occupied by sich enterprise, but shall not exceed a 
maximum area of 100 square feet. 

2. In a commercial or manufacturing district, two off premises signs 
with a total area not exceeding 600 square feet may be pennitted 

at a single location. No single off-premises sign shall exceed on 
thousand two hundred (1,200) sq. ft. , nor shall off-premises signs 
visible to approaching traffic have a minimum spacing of less than 
200 ft. Off-premises signs shall confonn to all applicable yard and 
height regulations for the appropriate zoning�dilff;lgt, except that 
such signs intended to be viewed from an elevated highway shall be 
not more than 20 feet above the level of the �Qad\vay at its nearest 
point. Off-premises wall signs shall have all structural and 
supporting members concealed from view. 

Temporary Signs 

Temporary signs, not exceeding 50 square feet in area, announcing 
special public or institutional events, the erection of a building, 
the architect, the builders, or contractors, may be erected for a 
period of 60 days pl us the contruction period� Such temporary signs 
shall confonn to the general and setback requirements as set forth ' 

----· 



in these regulations and, in--':addition, shall meet such other requirement 
as may be set by the Zoning Administrator to accomplish the intent 
of this section. 

I Free Standing Signs 

Free-standing on-premises signs, not over 30 ft. in height, having a 
maximum total sign area of one hundred square feet per display area 
and located not closer than 1 0  feet from any street right-of-way line and 
not closer than 30 feet from any ad joining lot line, may be erected 
to serve a group of business establishments. There shall be only one 
free-standing sign for each building, regardless of the number of bus
inesses conducted in said building. 

j. Wall Signs Pertaining to Nonconforming Uses 

On-premises wall signs pertaining to a nonconforming use shall be 
permitted on the same premises of such use, provided the area of such 
s;i,gb does not exceed 1 2  ft. 

k. Political Signs 

No political sign shall be posted in any place or in any manner that is 
destructive to public property upon posting or removal. No political 
sign shall be posted in a public right-of-way , nor shall any such sign 
be posted on a utility pole. No political sign shall be posted more than 

_ 60 days before an election. All candidates for public office, their 
campaign coD111ittees or other persons responsible for the posting on 
public property of campaign material shall remove such material within 
two (2) weeks followi ng election day. 

1. Sign Setback Requirements 

m. 

Except as modified in this section, on=premises signs, where permitted, 
shall be set back from the established right-of-way of any thoroughfare at 
least ten ( 1 0) feet. No off-premises signs shall be erected in front : .  
of the required set-back line for the appropriate zoning district. 

1. Increased Setback For every square foot by which any on-premises sign 
exceeds 50 sq. feet, the setback shall be focreased by 1 /2 foot, 
but need not exceed one hundred feet. 

2. Setbacks for Off-Premises Sisns. If a setback line is not established 
for tfie appropriate zoning a,strict, off-premises signs shall be set 
back a minimum of 20 feet from the right-of-way line. 

3. Setbacks for Public and Quasi-Public Signs • . All types _ of sig�s . and 
bulletin boards for a church, school _gr� aJly>other pul>hc, rehg1ous 
or Eclucational institution may be �ected not less than 1 0  feet 
from the established rjght-of=w�y Hne of any street or highway 
provided such sign or bulletin �oard complies with the clear sight 
triangle, as defined. 

4. Special Yard��t Provisions. On-Premises signs, where permitted, shall 
be erected or placed in conformity with the side and rear yard 
requirements of the district in which they are located, except that in 
any residential district, on-premises signs shall not be erected or . 
placed within 1 2  feet of a side or rear lot line. If the requirement 
for a single side yard in the appropriate zoning district is more 
than 1 2  feet, the latter shall apply. 

Uimitations 

For the purposes of this ordinance, billboards and. other outdoor 
advertising off-premises signs shall be classified as a business use 
for manufacturing or busi ness. No off-premises signs shall be per
mitted in other zoning districts. All billboards and other types of 
off-premises large advertising signs shall comply with all applicable 
federal and state laws. 

�-i ,-



UTILITY STRUCTURES 

Structures or uses required for public utilities such as gas, water, 
electric, sewage or telephone can be located within any district upon 
recomnendation of the Planning Commission and approval of the 

governing Body . 

14. GENERAL PROVISIONS AND EXCEPTIONS. "' 
1. Rules for Detennining Boundaries. 

lhere uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries of any of the 
regul ar and overlay districts, as shown on the Zoning Map, the fol lowing 
rules shall apply: 

a. Unless otherwise indicated, the district boundaries are indicated 
as approximately following property lines; land lot lines; center 
lines of street, hig_hways, all eys or railroads; shorelines of streams, 
reservoirs or other ·bodies of water; or civil boundaries; and they 
shall be construed to follow such lines. 

b. Where district boundaries are approximately parallel to the center 
lines of streets, highways or railroads; streams, reservoirs or 
·said line's extended, such district boundaries shall be construed as 
being parallel thereto and at such di stance therefrom as indicated on t 
the Zoning Map. If no distance is given, such dimensions shall be 
detennined by the use of the scale shown on the Zoning Map. 

C • . where a district boundary line.- as appearing on the Zoning Map, 
divides a lot which is in singl e ownership  at the time of enactment 
the use classification of the large portion may be extended to the 
remainder of the property by the Zoning Board of Adjustment without 
recourse to the amendment procedure. 

d. Where a public road, street or alley is officially vacated or 
abandoned, the regulations appl icable to the property to which i t  is 
reverted shall apply to such vacated or abandoned road, street or alley. 

e. In case the exact location of a boundary cannot be determined by the 
foregoing methods, the Board of Adjustment shall, upon application, 
detennine the l ocation of the boundary. 

2. General REstrict.ions Upon Land, Buildings and Structures � .  

a. Use --
No building or structure shall be erected, and no existing building 
shall be moved, altered, addedto or enlarged, nor shal l any land, 
building, structure or premises be used, designed. or intended to be 
used for any purpose or in any manner other than a use designated 
in this code, as all owed in  the district in which such · 1and, building, 
structure or premises are located. 

ARTICLE VI II 

SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 

l. Planned Unit Devel opment District� It is the intent of this provision to: 

a. Encourage the development of large tracts of land as planned 
neighborhoods or communities: 

b. Encourage flexible and creative concepts of site planning; 

c. Preserve the natural amenities of the land by encouraging scenic 
and functional open areas within �esidential areas; 

d. Accomplish a more desirable environment than would be possible 
through the strict appl ication of minimum requirements of the 
Ordinance. 

- ----�- ---· --- - - - ---·-- - -



e. Provi�e for an effecient use of land resulting in smaller networks 
of utilities and streets and thereby lower development and housing costs 

f. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding 
residential area. 

a. Pennitted Uses. Withii the planned unit development, a variety of land 
uses may be permitted in an orderly relation to one another and to existing 
land uses, with due regard to the comprehensive planning policies of the 
Town of Welaka. The uses pennitted within a planned unit development include 
the fi 11 owing : 

1. Single-family dwellings, •etached. 

2. 2•. ,Single-family attached dwellings: 

3. Townhouses and cluster housing; 

4. Multi-family dwellings, including high-rise �partment buildings; 

5. Churches, schools conununity or club buildings, and similar public or 
semi=public facilities; golf and country clubs. 

6. C011111ercial or retail uses, including offices and clinics, provided that 
they meet the fol lowing criteria: 

a. the location is appropriate in relation to other land uses. 

b. The proposed c011111ercial or office uses reflect the need for 
comercial and/or office needs according to the Town of Welaka's 
general development plan. 

B. REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS FOR APPROVAL: 

L A parcel which is proposed for a Planned Unit Development must contain 
a minimum area of 10 contiguous acres in single ownership or control. 

2. The Town of Welaka Planning and Zoning C011111ission and the Town of Welaka 
Council shall consider the following in their review of the proposed 
development plan" 

a. Adherence to the Town of Welaka planning policies and Long Range 
. J}�v,.g��opment Plan 

b. The proper relation between the proposed development and 1urrounding 
uses, and the effect of the plan upon comp�ehensive planning for the 
Town of Welaka. 

c. The adequacy of existing and proposed streets utilities, and other 
public services to serve the development; 

d. The character, design and appropriations of the proposed land uses 
aml_ their adequacy to encourage des i rab 1 e 1 i vi ng conditions, to 

1>r9y,ifde, separat,fions and screening between uses where desirable, to 
preserve the natural amenities of the land. 

3. Approval and rec011111endation of the Planning and Zoning Comission shall 
be accompanied by a report stating the rea$ons for approval of the 
application and specific evidence and facts showing that the proposed 
Plann'ed Unit Development will not adversely affect the property ad
jacent -'to the area included in the Plan. 

4. Final approval of the Planned Unit Development shall not be granted until 
the owner or owners of the property give written notice of their consent 
to the proposed development. 

C. REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRO&SDEIR&S: 

l, . Pre-Ap¥1ication Conference: Prior to filing of a fonnal application 
as a p  anned unit aevelopment, the applicant is, required to confer 
with the Planning and Zoning C011111ission in order to review the general 
character of the plan ( on a basis of a tentative land use sketch if 
avail able), and to obtain infonnation on projected progra�s. 

_ _  ._;.J.·,.t..::.i..-.e..:_,.:_;_...:. •. 



,,--. 

a. Development Plan 

a.  After the Pre-Application Conference, the applicant shall file a petition 
with the Planning and Zoni ng Commission for the approval of Planned Unit 
Development. This application shall be supported by a development plan 
and a written sumary of intent and shall show the relation between the 
proposed · develppment, and the surrounding area, both existing and proposed. 
This supportive material shall be submitted to the Planning and Zoning 
Comission for review and approval 1 

b. The following infonnation shall be presented: 

a. A general location map. 

b. Existing topographic conditions including contour intervals of one 
foot based on field surveys or photogrametric methods and boundary 

.. survey. 

c. The existi ng and proposed land uses and the approximate location of 
all buildings and structures to be included in the first phase of 
construction. 

d. The approximate location of existing and proposed streets and mador 
thoroughfares. 

e. The approximate location of existing and proposed utilities including 
a preliminary utility andJ drainage plan. 

f. The present zoning pattern in the area. 

g. A legal description of the subject property. 

h. The location and use of existing and proposed public, semi-public or 
comunity facilities, such as schools, parks, and open spaces. This 
will include areas proposed to be dedicated or reserved for comunity or 

public use. 

i. If a propesed development creates special problems, or involves 
unusual circumstances, additional infonnation may be required in order 
to properly evaluate the proposal as follows: 

An off-street parking and loading plan; 

':Ant��C!)Jt�ic feasibility report or market analysis; 

A traffic study of the area, and a circulation plan within the 
development and to and from existing streets and thoroughfares. 

Other infonnation as may be requ�,.red. 

c. The written statement submitted with the development plan shall include 
the following infonnation: 

a. ' A  statement of the present ownership of all land within the pro
posed development; 

b. An explanation of the character of the proposed develppment, 
including a summary of acres, dwelling units, and gross density by 
type of land use. The statement shall include minimum standards for 
lot size, yard and spac-;t,ng requi'rements. 

c. A general statement of the proposed development schedule and progression of 
unit division or staging; 

d. Agreements, provisions and covenants which govern the use, maintenance 
and protection of the develppment of common or open areas. 

e • .  The Planning and Zoning Comission shall consult with the City Building 
Inspector and Town Clerk relative to utility and municipal services 
required by the proposed development. 

f. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall approve or disapprove the Development 
Plan with or without conditions an4 may withould their approval until 
all changes are made to the Plan. 

g. Each stage or phase of construction of the P. U. D. shall be approved in 
the same' . manner as the total Development Plan by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission before any building pennits are issued. 

�dt 
. ~': 

' 
, 

) 



3. ZONING CHANGE PROCEDURE: 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7 • .  

a .  An application for approval of a Planned Uni t  Development wi ll be considered 
administratively as a peti ti on for rezoning and will be subject to the 
procedures established in  the zoning ordi nance. 

b .  After review and public hearing, the Town Council may disapprove, approve, or 
approve with modi fication the . plan after receiving the .recommendations of 
the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

c. If the development plan is  approved as submitted, the Town Clerk wi l l  cause 
the official zoning map to be changed to i ndicate the Planned Unit Devel op
ment. If the plan is approved wi th modificati ons, a properly revised site 
plan shall be approved by the Planning and Zoning Commissi on prior to 
,changing the zoning map. The si te plan and supporting information of any 
approved plan shall be properly identified and permanently fi led with the 
Town Clerk. 

�odificati on of Develofment Plan. Any major change i n  use from residential to 
business or change ;n ocati on or change of buildings, structures, land or 
water or alteration of or addi ti on to bui ldings or structures, or erection of 
new buildings or structures shall be in  accordance wi th a aew Development Plan 
conforming wi th thi sJ ordinance or any portion thereof as may be required by 
the Planning and Zoning C011111ission. Upon receipt of a• new or modified plan, 
the Planning and Zoning C011111ission may require such hearings as necessary to 
effectuate the i ntent of this Ordinance, but not to exceed the requirements of 
a new Development Plan, and shall forward i ts advice thereon to the Town Council  
for further acti on of the Cotmcil. 

Subdivisi on Approva·l: 

a. At the option of the applicant,; \,, , preli minary subdivi si on plat may be filed 
with the development plan in  order that tentative approval of the subdi visi on 
by the Planning Commission may be granted. 

b. In no case shall subdivi sj:on approval precede approval of . the development plan. 

Building and Occupanc� Permits ; The building official shall issue building 
permits for the struc ures i n  the area covered by the approved development plan 
if  they are in  substantial conformity wi th the approved deve-lopment plan, 
schedule and with other applicable regulations. 

Revision of Oeveloment Plan: Any major or substantial change in  the approved 
development plan w 1 ch affects the intent and character of the development, 
the densi ty or l and use pattern, the locati on or dimensions of streets, or 
similar changes shall be reviewed and approved b) the Town Counci l  subsequent 
to receipt of the recommendati on of the Planning and Zoning Commissi on. A 
request for the revision of the development plan shall be supported by a 
written statement of why the revisions are nedessary or desi rable. 

8. Approval of the Town Council shall be i n  effect for at least a two year period, how 
ever, if no construction has begun wi thi n two years after approval of the de
velopment plan, or if  the applicant fails to mai ntain the approved development 

. plan schedule the approval el the development plan shall lapse and be of no 
further effect. At i ts descreti on and for good cause, the Town Council may 
extend for one additi onal year the period for begi nni ng constructi on. i f  the 
approval of a development plan lapses under this provision, the Town Council 
shall take the nesessary rezoning action to remove the Planned Uni t Development 
from the official zoning map, file a notice of revocation with the recorded 
development plan, and reinstate the zoni ng district and regulati ons which were 
in effect pri or to the approval of the development plan. 

Development Requirements 

1 .  Relation to Zoning Districts. 

a .  An approved Planned Uni t  Development Shall be Gonsidered to be a separate 
zoning district i n  which the develpjpent�plan, as approved establishes the 
restrictions and regulations according to which development shall occur. 
Upon approval, the official zoning map wi ll be changed to indicate the 
area as a planned unit Devele>pment. 

-. 

2. Regulation limi ti ng height, bulk, density and area by land use 

a. Where the proposal for a planned Unit Development abuts an exi sting one-



/ 

famil y  district, no struc·tures over two(2) stories i n  J1e1g1lt shal l be pennitted 
within 1 00 feet of the abutting one-famil y  district. 

b. The pennitted gross density within any Pl anned Uni t  Devel opment shal l not 
exceed eight (8) dwel l in

_
g units per acre. Publ ic streets and subaquious or 

submerged bottom l and of l akes or streams. ,  except as provided in ( 2) c. bel ow 
shal l be excl uded in computing the area of the parcel , and therefore, the 
related density. 

c. Subaqueous or submerged bottom l and of l akes or streams shal l be excl uded in 
computing the area of a parcel except that where the l ands abutting said l akes 
or streams are devel oped in park or open space for the use of residents of the 
neighborhood, the surface area of said l akes or streams may be used to compute 

d. 

e. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

2. 

3.  

density. 

Li vi,ng prea standards used fn the Pl anned Unit :',,Oeve 1 opment sha 1 1  confonn to 
the requirements of the MR-i Development. 

Every attached singl e-famil y dwel l ing shal l have access to a public street, 
court , wal kway or other area dedicated to public use. The l ocation of al l 
pnoposed structures shal l be as shown on the devel opment pl an, subject to minimum 
l ot size, setback l ines, l ot coverage or fl oor area, speci fied i n  the approved pl an. 

Access : Al l access streets, courts and parking areas shal l be designated to 
effectivel y rel ate with the Long Range Devel opment Plans of the Town. Private 
streets are to be al l owed within the Pl anned Unit Devel opment if they meet Town 
construction standards and are of a design wlich meets with the appl!Oval of the 
Town Engineer. 

Off-street parking: Off-street parking shal l be provi ded J;n accordance wi th 
Article VI herein. , 

Control of area fol l owing Come_letion : 

a. After compl etion of a Pl anned Unit Devel opment the use of l and and construction 
modification or al teration of any butl ding or structures within the area 
covered by- the Pl an shal l be regul ated by the the approved development pl an. 

b. No changes may be made in the approved devel opment pl an except as provided below. 

a.Extensions, al terations , or modifications requiring building pennits of · 
existing buil dings or structures may be pennitted after review and approval of 
the buil ding official , provided they are substantial l y  consistent with purposes 
and intent of the devel opment plan. 

b.Substantial change in pennitted uses, l ocation of buil dings or other spec
ifications of the develQpment pl ans may be pennitted fol l owing publ ic hearing 
and approval by the Town Council , upon receipt of the recomendations of the 
Pl anning and Zoning Commission. 

Group Housin9 Projects. Pl ans for proposed group housing projects containing two 
or more buil ings which are l ocated on a parcel of l and not subdivided into the 
customary streets and l ots, or,oontain a buil ding not oriented so the main 
entrance (s) directl y face a street , shal l be presented to the Pl anning and Eoning 
ColTBTiission for review. The Co1TBTiission shal l make certain the proposed devel opment 
meets the fol l owing requirements : 

1 .  The propesed devel opment shal l be compatibl e  with requirements and intent 
of the subdivision regul ations rel ative to access, drainage, util ities, 
and major streets. 

2. Sidewal ks are required in the project area l eading from al l front and rear 
doors to streets. 

3. Off-street parking spaces shal l be provided as required in Section VI 
':hereof. 

4. The �ensity control s of the district in which the devel ppment is l ocated 
shal l apply. 

Swiming Pool s :  No swimming pool shal l be so l ocated, designed, operated, or 
maintained as to interfere with the rights of the adjoining property. Lights 
to il l uminate any swiming pool shal l be so arranged and shadowed as to refl ect 
l ight away from adjointiiig premises. Swimming pool s shal l be classed as an accessory 
use and shal l be subject to al l yard requirements of accessory uses. Al l swimming 
pool s shal l be subject to the existing Town Ordinance on swiming pool s. 



4. Townhouses; Al l town house devel 9pments shal l make efficient, econe�Jcal, 
comfortab 1 e and convenient use of 1 and and open space and serve the pufiU.c 
purpose of zoning by means al ternative to conventional arrangements of .Yards 
and buil dabl e areas. Al l townhouse devel opments shal l meet the fol lowing 
minimum requirements. 

5. 

6. 

1 .  No side yard is required, except that the side yard setback for a structure 
adjacent to a street shal l be 25 feet and the side adjacent to an exterior 
property l ine shal l be 1 0  feet. 

2. No rear yard is required e1cept that a rear yard of 20 feet is required 
when the rear yard of a townhouse structure abutts an exterior property l ine. 

3. A minimum front yard of 25 feet is required when fronting on a street. 

·4.• E,ach town house shal 1 have a direct automotive access for the off-street 
parking space to a publ ic street. 

5. No portion of a townhouse structure shal l be closer than twenty feet to 
any portiton of a contiguous town house in another struct1ire. 

6. Al l outdoor, rear yard areas used for drying of cl other shal l be screened 
from view from the street and from adjoining yards and parking l o�:°:;)·,o 

7. Parking space shal l be provided for at l east two. automobil es for each 
dwel l ing. ·· 

. Gasol ine Station Requirements 

1 .  Al l pumps shal l be set back at l east twenty feet from the right-of-way l ine 
of the adjacent street. 

2. The number of curb breaks for an establ ishment shal l not exceed one for 
each 1 00 feet of street frontage, or fraction thereof, having a width of 
not more than 50 feet and l ocated not cl oser than 20 feet to the street 
right of way intersection. Two or lnore curb breaks on the same street 
shal l be separated by a minimum of 1 0  fee·ttand no curb breaks shal l be l ocated 
between the point of tangent on the curve of an intersection. 

Site Development Pl an 

1 .  No buil ding,structure or use shal l be erected, al tered, instal l ed or 
maintained except in confonnity with the provisions of this Ordinance, and 
with a Site Devel opment Pl an approved as provided herein. 

2. In passing upon arid:;iapproving such Site Devel opment Pl an, the Pl anning and 
Zoning C011111ission shal l consider the l ocation, size, height, spaceing of 
any building, structure or use and its appurtenances, access and circul ation 
for vehicl es and pedestrians, streets, parking areas, yards and open spaces 
and rel ationship to adjacent property. The Planning and Zoning Co11111ission 
shall not approve such Site Devel opment Pl an unless it finds that such 
Site Development Plan confonns to al l appl icable provisions of the zoning 
ordinance, that the safety and convenience of the public are properly 
provided for, that adequate off-street parking and l oading facil ities are 
are provided for and that ad�uate protection and separation are provided for 
contiguous and nearby property. The Pl anning and Zoning Co11111ission may 
attach to its approval of a Site Devel ppment Pl an any reasonabl e condition, 
l imitation or requirement which is found neceSSi!TY, in its judgement, to 
effectuate the purposes of this Section and to carry out the spirit and 
purpose of the zoning ordinance. 

3. A devel opment Pl an for the purposes of this section shall incl ude, but not 
not necessaril y be l imited to, the fol l owing pl ans, designs specifications 
and iti'f-0nnation: 

a. Site pl an with grades or contours. 

b. El evations, fl oor plans and use of al l buil dings and structures. 

c. Landscaping Pl an and Preservation of existing valuable trees. 

d. Location and character of al l outside facil ities for waste disposal . 

e. Al l curb cuts, driveways, parking areas, l oading areas, and surfacing 
material s and cross-sections of same. 

f. Al l pedestrian wal ks, mal l s, yards and open areas. 



4. 

� 

g. Location, site, ' character,b�:tght and orientation of al l  s.igns, .. 

h. Location, height and character of al l wal l s  and fences. 

i .  

j .  

k. 

1 .  

m. 

n. 
,. 

Al l 

a.  

b. 

Location and character of peripheral l andscaping. 

Front, side and rear yard setback l ines. 

Eas1!rutirrf<$. 

Drainage, water, sewer and fire protection pl ans. 

Street Lighting pl an. 

Circul ation pl an 

appl ications for Site Devel opment Pl ans shal l be made in the fol l owing manner; 

The Buil ding Inspector shal l furnish the proper appl ication bl anks for use 
in making appl ication for Site Devel opment Pl ans. 

The appl icant shal 1 furnish al 1 necessary infonnation required upon the ·· 
appl ication fonn and sha 1 1  furnish any other pertinent infonnation required · 
by the Cl erk in order that the matter may be properly presented to the Pl anning . 
and Zoning Commidion. 

c. The appl ications shal l be presented by the Cl erk at the first meeting of 
the Pl anning and Zoning Co111nission hel d not l ater than the expiration of 
thirty days from the fil ing of a proper appl ication. 

5. The Pl anning and Zoning Coamission shal l have the right to refuse or approve 
an appl ication for a Site Devel opment Pl an and, in either such event, it shal l 
record in the minutes of its meeting the reasons for such action. The Planning 
and Zoning Commission shal l within thirty days, take action either approving or 
disapproving such application. In the event that the Pl anning and Zoning 
Comission fail s to take such action approving or disapproving, an application 
shal l be deemed to have been approved by the Commission. 

6. In the event that Pl anning and Zoning Conwnission shal l disapprove the Site 
Development Pl an, it shal l advise · the appl icant of its reasons thereof, and 
make reconwnendations eoncerning the Site Devel opment Pl an. The appl icant may 
either amend the Pl an and resubmit the amended Pl an or may fil e a notice of 
intention to appeal the decision of the Board to the Town Council . 

7. The Town Council upon receipt of a Site Development Pl an appeal shal l within 
thirty days, take action either disapproving or approving appl ication. The Town 
Council may approve such appl ication subject to any amendments it shal l make and 
if the appl icant agrees to such amendments, the application shal l be approved 
subject to the amendments. If the appl icant does not agree, the Site Devel op
ment Plan shal l be deemed disapproved. The action of the Town Council shal l be 
final . No buil ding pennits shal l be issued until the Site Devel opment, Pl an is 
approved by the Town Council and a copy of the Pl an has been issued to the 
Buil ding Inspector. 

H. SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

1 .  A�tes,so,tiffe�:sl!s and Structures 

a. Authorization 

Accessory uses and structures are pennitted in any zoning district when 
such uses or structu�es are ancil l ary, in connection with- and incidental to 
principal use or structure al l owed within the district in \:J�estion. 

b .  Accessory Uses by Zoning District. 

The fol l owing accessory uses and structures shal l onl y be pennitted in 
the zoning districts as herein enumerated: 

1 .  In al l residential dwel l ing districts (singl e-family, two-famil y, town
house and mul ti�famil y) and al so the agricultural and .residential country 
estate districts: 

a. Antenna structures for tel evision and radio, but not microwave rel ay 
or transmission structures. 



b. Chil drens playhouse, not to exceed one hundred sq. feet of gross floor 
. area and/or juvenil e play equipment. 

c. Fall out shelters. 

d. Private garages and carports, subject to the fol lowing limitations : 
1. No garage or· carport, when used as an accessory to a multiple-family 

residence shall be designed for more than two vehicles per dwelling unit. 

e. Gazebos and simil ar structures • 

f. PrJ vate swimming pools and bathhouses. 

g. Tennis, basketbal l or vol l eyball court and other similar private recreation 
uses. 

2. C9�1 In the agricultural district : 
. r 

! 
c__/ a. Barns and other simil ar structures 

b. Roadside stands, subject to the fol l owing liMitations. 

1. The total structural area shall not exceed 200 square feet in gross floor area. 

2. Furthennore, such structures : 

a. Sha 1 1  be penni tted only during crop growing season, and sha 11 be removed, 
except during such season.'  

b. Shall be for the express purpose- of sale of agricultural products grown on 
the same property. 

c. Shall be located a minimum distance of 30 feet from the street right-Of 
Way line and not closer than ten feet to any lot line. 

d. Shall be located so as to provide for adequate off-street parking spaces 
and safe ingress and egress to the adjacent street. 

e. Shall be allowed one buil df og mounted sign, mounted flush against the 
stand, which does not exceed ten square feet. 

· 3, In the agricultural, residential country estate, al l single-family residential, 
two-family residentia.1 and mobi le home districts. 

a. Doghouses, pens and other similar struc·,tures for the keeping of c0111110nly 
accepted househo 1 d pets. · . . · 

b. Parking of not more than two major recreational vehicles, including but 
not limited to boat trailers not exceeding 25 ft. in length, camping 
trailers, travel trailers, motorized dwel lings. tent trailers and horse 
vans, subject to the following limitations : 

1. Such equipment shal l not be used for living, sleeping or other 
occupancy when parked. 

2. Such equipment six feet or more in average height shall not be parked 
or stored in a garage, carport or other structure and shall nc,t be 
located in any required front yard. 

4. In any zoning district : 

a. No accessory structure shall be occupied or utilized, unless the principal 
structure to which it ts accessory is occupied or utilized. 

b. All a�cessory uses and structuPes shall comply with the use limitations 
applicable in the zoning district in which they are located. 

c. Al 1 a.ccessory uses and structures shal 1 comply with the property develop
ment regulations applicable in the zoning district in which they are located 

d. All accessory uses and structures shall be arranged and maintained so as 
not to encroach on any required front yard. 

33{ 

/ 



2 Churches 

3. Mobile Homes 

The minimum developmental criteria for churches in any district where 
allowed shall include: 

a. Adequate site area to acconnnodate all structures and required off
street parking and circulation areas for motor vehicles, in accordance 
with the parking schedule in these regulations. 

b. Location on a collector or arterial street with adequate frontage 
to accommodate ingress-egress driveways in proportion to expected 
peak attendance levels in order not to disrupt roadway traffic. 

c. Maintenance of the required clear sight triangle. 

d. Building setbacks as required in the district fn which the facility 
is located. 

e. Buffering in the form of hedge materials and/or fence or wall, as 
appropriate, along lot lines adjacent to residential uses. 

f. If there is a dwelling for clergy attached or on the same premises, 
required open space for occupant use shall be. 
1 .  

For single-family homes: as for the same use in a district 
. pennitting : single-family homes, even though the premises may be 
in another district. 

I.For group homes (residence halls) : as for multi-family dwellings. 

All mobile homes must be fully skirted all around base. They must 
be tied down and connected to approved sanitary and utility systems 
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

ARTICLE IX 

ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 

I,,. ENFORCEMENT OFFICER. 

The provisioo�of this regulation shall be administered and enforced by the 
Building and Zoning Inspector. This official shall have the right to enter 
upon any premises at any reasonable time for the purpose of making inspection 
of buildings on premises necessary to carry out his duties in the enforcement 
this regulation. 

If the building Inspector shall find that any of the provisions of this 
regulation are being vi� ;ated, he shall notify in writing the person respons
ible for such violation, indicating the nature of the violation and ordering 
the action necessary to correct it. He shall order discontinuance of illegal 
use of land, buildings, structures or additions,alterations, or structural 
changes thereto; discontinuance of any illegal work itcing done; or shall take 
any other action authorized by this regulation to insure compliance with or to 
prevent violation of its provisions. 

2. BUILDING PERMITS REQUIRED, 

1 .  No structure or building shall hereafter be erected or structurally altered 
until a building pennit shall be issued by the Building Official, stating 
that he believes that the building or structure and use of land comply 
with the regulatiops of this ordinance and with all applicable bµilding 
and health laws and ordin�_n:c:�s. 

2. Each application for a building pennit shall be accompanied by a plot plan 
in duplicate, drawn to scale, she.wi ng the actual dimensions of the lot 
or lots to be built upon, the size of the building or structure to be 
erected or structurally altered, its location on the lot , and such other 
infonnation necessary to provide for the enforcement of these regulations. 

-
3. A record of such applications and plot plans shall be kept in the office 

of the Building Inspector. 



, 
4. No build;ng shall be constructed and no pennit shall be issued for any 

building on an.y preJ1Jises not served b.y $.et.t��e �ts,posal facilities meeting 
the standards prescri bed by the State .Health ' Depa"tment. 

3. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR A BUlLDING 

A certificate of occupancy for a new building, or for the alteration of an 
existing building, shall be applied for coincident with the appli cation for 
a building pennit and said certificate shall be issued within three days 
after the request for same shall have been made in writing to the Building 
Inspector after the erection or alteration of such building or part thereof 
shall have been completed in confonnity with the provisions of these 
regulations. Pending the issuance of a regular certificate, a temporary 

. certificate of occupancy may be issued by the Building Inspector for a period 
;'. not exceeding six months, during the completion of alterations or during the 

�partial occupancy of a building pending its completions Such temporary 
certificate shall not be construed as in any way altering the respective 
rights, duties or obligations of the owners or of the ci)j relating to the 
use of occupancy of the premises or any other matter covered by this ordinance, 
and such temporary certificate shall not be issued, except under such res 
strictions and provisions as will adequately insure the safety of the occupants. 

4. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR LAND:  

A certificate of occupancy for the use of vacant land, or the change in the 
character of the use of land, as herein provided, shall be applied for before 
any such land shall be occupied or used and a certificate of occupancy 
shall be issued within three days after the application has been made ; 
provided that such use is · in confonnity with the prov.isions of these re
gulations. 

The record of all certificates shall be kept on file an the office of the 
Building Inspector and copies shall be furnished, on request to any person 
having a proprietary or tenants interest in the building affected. No 
fee shall be charged for a certificate of occupancy. 

No pennit for excavation for any building shall be issued before application 
has been made for certificate of occupancy. 

A certificate of occupancy shall be issued for all non-confonning uses. 
Application for such certificates shall be filed with the Building Inspector 
within twelve months from the effective date of this ordinance. 

5. VIOLATION AND PENALTIES 

Any person, finn or corporation who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects or 
refuses to comply with this, or who resists the enforcement of any of the 
provisions of this ordinance shall, upon conviction, be fined not less than 
$200.00 for each offense. Each day that a violation is pennitted to exist 
shall constitute a separate offense. 

6. FEES 

Fees perta·ining to petitions for zoning amendments, use pennits; certificates 
'.t;{of compliance, and appeals to the Town Council shalL be established by 

action of the Town Council from time to time. Such fees shall be paid to 
the Town Clerk. 

ARTICLE X 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

1 .  CHEAJION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Thf�J1 is hereby established a Board of Zoning Adjustment consisting of five 
residents, appointed by the Mayor and confinned by the Town Council. The 
members of the said Board shall serve : 

One for one year. 

One for two years. (Councilmeinber - concurrent with his/her tenn of office. 

One for three years. 

---
.. ,. , 



One for four years · 

One for five years. 

The successor of each member shall serve for the term of five years. 

Vacancies shall be filled by the Mayor, subject ta confirmation by the Town 
Council for the unexpired term. Any member or members may be removed by the 
Mayor for cause after written charges have been fil ed and after a public 
hearing has been held if such a hearing is demanded by the member so charged. 

The Board of Adjustment shall each year select from its members a Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman. 

The Chairman, or in his absence, the Vice-Chairman, may administer oaths. 
Th& Bqard shall also select one member a Secretary to keep minutes and maintain 
the records of the Board of Zoning Adjustment. 

2. PROCEEDINGS 

Al 1 meetings of the Board of Zoning Adjustment and all hearings shall be open 
to the public. Meetings shall be held at the call of the Chairman and at such 
other times as a majority of the Board may determine. The minutes of the proceed 
ings shall show the vote of each member upon every qu", estion decided by the 
Board; of if any member is absent of fails to vote , shall so indicate. 
Statement of the findings by the Board shal,1 be included in the minutes as to 
each case heard or considered by it. The reason for reconmending or denying 
a variation as herein later described shall also appear in the minutes. In 
every instance, a brief statement of the facts upon which such recommendatiou 
are based shall appear in the minutes. The Board shall adopt its own rules 
of proc:edure, a copy of which and a 11 amendments thereto sha 11 be f i 1 ed in  the 
office of the Town Clerk. The minutes of the Board shall be open to public 
examination at reasonable hours. 

Eipenses incurred by the Board are to be itemized and shall be borne by the 
Town except as may be specified later herein. 

3. JURISDICTION 

The Board of Zoning Adjustment as herein created is a body of limited : powers. 
The Board shall hear and decide appeals from and review any order, requirements 
decision or determination made by the administrative officials charged with 
the administration or enforcement of this regu;ljition. 

The Board of Zoning Adjus.tment shall have no authority to authorize the use 
of any parcel of property or structure in a manner not permitted by the zoning 
classification of the district in which such property is located. 

The con«urring vote of four members of the Board shall be necessary t<> , reverse 
any order, requirement, decision or determination of the officer fromz:w.ljom 
an appeal is taken or to decide in favor of the applicant any matter in which 
said Board is required to pass under the provisions of the regulation. 

4. APPEALS AND REVIEW,/ 

Any person aggrieved by a ruli ng of the Building Inspector, or any officer·, 
department, board or bureau of the Town concerning the interpretation, ad
ministration or enforcement of this ordinance may appeal to the Board of Ad
justment. Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days of filing with the Boar{t. 
a notite of appeal specifying the grounds thereof, toge:ti'l:ier with such plats .· 
and exhibits as are reasonably necessary. Board may provide or prescribe the 
form upon which such appeals shall be filed. The Building Inspector shall forth
with transmit to the Board all of the papers constituting his record concerning 
the action from wlich appeal was taken. 

5. STAY OF PROCEEDINGS 

The appeal shall stay all proceeding unless the Building Inspector certified 
to the Board of Adjustment after the notice of appeal has been filed with him 
that, by reason of facts which he shall set forth in his certificate, a stay 
would, in his opinion, cause immenent peril to life or property, in which case 
the proceedings shall not be stayed other than by a restraining order which may 
be granted by the Board of Adjustment of by Court of Record on application with 
notice to the building official 



6. 

� 

The Board of Adjustment shall . fix a reasonable time and place for the 
hearing of appeals ; and shall provide notice thereof to the persons 
appealing and to the Officer from whom the appeal is taken. It shall hear 
and decide the appeal within a reasonable time. At the hearing, parties 
may appear in .person or by agent or attorney. The Board of Adjustment may 
after such hearing reverse or affinn, wholl y  or in part, or may modify the 
ruling order, requirement, decision or detennination appealed from, to 
confonn with its conclusion as to the action which ought to be made in the 
premises, and to that end, shall have all the powers of the Officer from whom 
the. appeal was takEla; but shall not by such action vary from the scope, 
tenns, and intent of this zoning regulation. 

VARIANCES 

The Board of Adjustment may authorize upon appeal in specific cases such 
variance from the terms of this regulation as will not be contrary to the 
public interest, where, owing to special conditions, as literal enforcement 
of the provisions of this regulation wil l result in unnecessary hardship, 
and so that the spirit of this ordi nance shall be observed and - substantial 
justice done. Variances may be granted on density control requirements 
only. 

Z. RULES GOVERNING VARIANCE 

No variance shall be allowed; 

1. To pennit a non-confonning use. 

2. To permit a use not pennitted in a District. 

· 3. Tp pennit a non-conforming use in any residential district. 

4. To permit a non-conforming manufacturing use in a business district. 

8. NOTICE OF HEARINGS 

Decisions, findings and recommendations of the Board of Adjustment shall be 
reached only after a public hearing and after notice has been given by 
registered mail . to the applicant. In addition, publi c notice shall contain 
the address or location of the propertyhconcerning which a hearing by the 
Board is sought, as well as a brief description of the nature of the 
application. 

9. RIGHT OF APPEAL 

Any property holder in the Town of Welaka, Florida, who deems himself 
aggrieved by amy variance shall be entitl ed to chall enge its reasonableness 
in an appeal to a court of competent jurisdiction taken within twenty days 
of the enactment or promulgation of said variance. 

ARTICLE XI 

IONING REGULATION AMENDMENTS 

The regulations and the number, area, and boundaries of districts and all 
or any portion of these regulations may be amended, supplemented, changed, 
modified, or repealed by the Town Council after a public hearing has been 
held on the proposed change by both the Planning and Zoning COD111ission and 
the Town Council; provided that such amending ordinance shall be published 
in a newpaper of general circul ation at least fifteen days in advance of its 
passage. 

ARTICLE XII 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
- • .• I 

The official zoning map of the Town of Welaka, as attached hereto, shall be 
made an integral part of Ordinance 8., -. ; ,  as enacted by the Town Council . 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP CHANGES 

Any amendm�nt to the Zoning Ordiaance requiring a change in district 
boundaries shall be shown on the Official Zoning Map after the . passage pf 
such amendment. Such change sha-1 1 be noted, dated, and signed by the Mayor 
and attested by the Town Clerk in the same manner as the original maps. 



- -- ' 

Section two 

That all Ordi nances and parts of Ordi nances i n  confl i ct herewi th are 
hereby repealed . 

Section three 

That thi s Ordi nance shall . become effective i11111ediately upon i ts passage. 

Section four . 

That this Ordi nance shall be posted as provided by law. 

PASSED fi rst reading at a meeti ng held_..,.q,-·_.'4 ..... d
....,
- .__� .......... k--------1 983 

PASSED fi nal readi ng at a meeti ng held � / !) 

ATTEST: 
"' -- . .  _ ·· ·.(seal) 

c..: 
TOWN OF WELAKA, FLORIDA 

� ( k. ftL , i£/ ,rde_,, 
RORTAi.f. HYDE 

;;:r V 1' 

TOWN CLERK 
·� /t?P4 
CEDRIC E. MILTON 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

____________ 198:3 

j 

I -

I 

__ _J 



� 

THE TOWN COUNCIL OF WELAKA, FLORIDA. APPROVED AND ADOPTED 

ORDINANCE 83-2, 11A COMPREHENSIVE ZONING REGULATION FOR THE 

TBWN OF WELAKA" ON TUESDAY , MAY 1 0 ,  1 983. 

AH AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS ORDINANCE, A BOARD OF ZONING 

ADJUSTMENT WAS APPOINTED BY MAYOR JAMES D. BROWN AND 

APPROVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL. 

THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS COMPOSE THE FIRST BOARD OF ZONING 

ADJUSTMENT FOR THE TOWN OF WELAKA. 

1 .  MARGARET RUSS 

2. CHARLES ANDREWS -

3. , CHESTER CLARK -

4. FERN: .- WESTFALL -

5. JAN JEFF�RSON -

�iAfdu 
TOWN CLERK 

FIVE YEARS 

FOUR YEARS 

THREE YEARS 

TWO YEARS 

ONE YEAR 


	83-2: 83-2
	Name of Ordinance: ZONING ORDINANCE


